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NOMURA INTERNATIONAL PLC

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of Nomura International plc ("the Company") present ther report and the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

These financial statements have been prepared on a company only basis and do not include the results
and net assets of the Company's subsidiary undertakings

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company I1s the London based secunties broker/dealer operating company within the Nomura Group
headed by Nomura Holdings, Inc (*NHI"} The Company's activities include

Trading and sales in fixed income and equity products, including related dervatives,
Investment banking services,

Asset and principal finance business, and

Corporate finance and private equity

The Company has branches n Madnd, Dubai, Milan, Stockholm, Helsinki and Doha

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results for the year are set out on page 10 The loss transferred to reserves for the year amounted
to $728,982,000 (2012 loss of $1,245,674,000)

No intenm dividend was pad (2012 $Ni) and the Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dmdend (2012 $Nil)

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The Company's key financial and other performance indicators during the year were as follows

Year ended Year ended

1 _March 201 31 March 2012

$'000 $000

Trading profit 1,882,336 2,987,499
Loss on ordinary activites before taxation (735,237) (1,265,774)
Loss on ordinary activibies after taxation (728,982) (1,245,674)

Shareholders’ funds 4,124,859 3,379,658




NOMURA INTERNATIONAL PLC
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS {CONTINUED)

The Company reported a reduced loss on ordinary actwvities before tax for the year of $735,237,000
(2012 loss of $1,265,774,000) Despite the continued challenging business environment, tnggered by the
fiscal problems seen In certan eurozone countries, the Company reported an improved performance N
particular from its Fixed Income Dwision In addition, n December 2012, the Company recogmsed a
gan upon completion of the sale of Annington Homes to a fund managed by UK private equity firm
Terra Frma

Gwiven this challenging business environment, the Nomura Group continued to implement it's previously
announced cost reduction intiatives More recently, on 6 September 2012 the WNomura Group
implemented a plan to reduce Wholesale Dwvision costs by a combined $1bn by March 2014 which
included restructunng its Global Equities franchise to focus on transparent and agency-driven execution
businesses As a key participant of these cost reduction plans, the Company reduced its costs

As a result of the Wholesale Dwision restructunng, the Company has impared $50,227,067 of goodwill
recognised on the acquistion of the Lehman Brothers business in October 2008 and $9,102,600 of its
nvestment in Tricom Partners LLP, a firm specialised n providng corporate finance advisory services
acquired in December 2009

In response to the losses reported n current and pror pencds and the ncreasing regulatory
requrements for financial insttutions, the Company has strengthened its capital base by 1ssuing further
ordinary shares This demonstrates the Nomura Group's support for its European business These capital
ncreases comprsed the issuance of $222,820,640 of ordinary shares 0 November 2012,
$1,059,801,328 of ordinary shares in December 2012, and an additional $80,000,000 of ordinary shares
n January 2013 to Nomura Europe Holdings plc ("NEHS") The proceeds from the capital increase were
partially used to repay subordinated debt 1ssued to NEHS

The improved capital base wil allow continued focus on chent flow businesses and supplying liqudity to
the market, while closely monttoring nisk In particular, the Company has taken measures to reduce its
exposures to Greece, lIreland, ltaly, Portugal and Span, mn ine with other members of the Nomura
Group

Also, the Nomura Group frequently reviews its legal entity strategy in light of the numerous challenges
that the industry and markets are facing As part of the legal entity strategy, in October 2012 Nomura
Holdings, Inc registered Nomura Financial Products & Services, Inc ("NFPS’), a newly established wholly
owned subsidiary as a Financial Instruments Business Operator under Japan's Financial Instruments and
Exchange Act Subsequently, the Company transferred a number of s trading portfolios to NFPS and
will continue 1o look into further opportunities to optimise 1its financial resources within certain businesses

The Company will contnue to implement its cost reduction programme while focusing on deliverng high
value-added products and solutions to its clients




NOMURA INTERNATIONAL PLC
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
KEY REGULATORY CHANGES

Basel 3

There are a number of regulatory developments that impact capital requirements for UK regulated
entities  Most significantly Basel 3 as adopted into EU law through the fourth Capital Requirements
Directive (“CRD4") and Capital Regurrements Regulation which come into force on 1 January 2014

The Company continues to prepare for the implementation of CRD4 and other regulatory changes, and
includes the estimated impact of future regulatory changes in its capital planning framewaork

The Company understands the regulatory rnsks and 1s prepared to mittgate any increase In capital
requrements and changes to what 1s defined to constitute capital Gwven the current market conditions
and the changes to the regulatory environment, the Company will continue to review the capital planning
process to ensure that it aways mamntains adequate capital to meet its minmum regulatory capital
requirements

Dodd-Frank Act

In ts normal course of business, the Company engages in dervative transactions with US-based clients
As a result, the Company provisionally registered as a CFTC regulated non-US Swap Dealer with the
National Futures Association (“NFA”} on 31 December 2012, as required by the Dodd-Frank Wall Street
Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the "Dodd-Frank Act™

In July 2010, the US enacted the Dodd-Frank Act which 15 now the subect of a multi-agency
rulemaking process Among others, the rulemakngs include the creation of a tghter regulatory
framework for OTC dernvatives to promote transparency and ympose conduct rules n that marketplace
The new regulatory framework for OTC dervatives will include mandates for cleanng transactions wath
designated cleanng organizations, exchange trading, new capital requirements, bilateral and vanation
margin for noncleared denvatives, swap data trade reporting, collateral operations, and internal and
external business conduct rules Some of the derwatves rules may be apphed extraterritonally and
therefore mpact the Company

The exact detals of the Dodd-Frank Act implementation and ultmate mmpact on the Company's
operations will depend on the form and substance of the final regulattons adopted by vanous US
governmental agencies and oversight boards, and agreements between international regulators on the
extent of applyng the rules extraterntonally

EMPLOYEE MATTERS

The Company operates an equal opportunities policy We have taken steps to ensure all employees are
aware of ther obligations in ensuring that the Company’s environment retains an atmosphere which s
conducive to good working and high performance

The Company’'s am s to ensure that each and every indwidual s shown respect, treated farly and
courteously and has equal access to further opportunity and reward based on contrnbution to the
Company

Full mnternal communication and access to traning and development opportunites suppert  this
philosophy

The Company 18 committed to taking positve action to promote equalty of opportunity, which includes
provision for disabled people and those who have become disabled while employed by the Company
Our recrutment, traming and promotion procedures are all based on the requrements of a particular
position




NOMURA INTERNATIONAL PLC
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's actmbes involve the assumption and transfer of certan nsks, including market nsk,
credit nsk (ncluding counterparty credit nsk}), hquidity nsk, cash flow interest rate rsk and operational
nsk Further information on these nsks and the Company's nsk management objectives and policies are
described in note 19 to the financial statements

These nsks are managed through sub-committees of the Board of NEHS These include a Board Risk
Committes, having oversight of and providing advice to the Board on the NEHS Group’s nsk profile, nsk
appehte, future nsk strategy and maintenance of an appropnate nsk control framework Additionally there
are committees dedicated to overseeing nsks in relaton to non-Europe Middle East and Africa (EMEA)
business booked into certan European entities, including the Company

ENVIRONMENT

The Nomura Group believes a healthy environment 1s the foundation of stable economic and social
conditions for future generations We are committed to actng in an environmentally responsible manner
and therefore approach environmental 1ssues positively

s We encourage investment and constructive engagement in environmentally friendly goods and
services,

e We assess environmental rnsks and contnually strive to minmize poliutien and improve the
environment,

e We comply wih relevant environmental laws and regulatons and engage with external
stakeholders on environmental I1ssues,

e We are committed to reducing waste and conserving energy and natural resources to minimize
the impact of our footpnnt on the environment,

+  We communicate this polcy to all employees to raise awareness of environmental ssues and
encourage environmentally fnendly inibiatves,

»  We make this policy avalable for public review

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Movements In tangible fixed assets are shown in note 9 to the financial statements

CREDITOR PAYMENT POLICY

It 15 the pohcy of the Company to meet industry standard terms of transaction related payments or to
pay In accordance with the terms agreed with supplers when orders for goods or services are placed
Creditor days as at 31 March 2013 were 14 (2012 14)

EVENTS SINCE THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There have been no significant events since the balance sheet date

DONATIONS

No political donations were made dunng the year (2012 $Nil) Chantable donations of $457,503 {2012
$1,038,111) have been made
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
DIRECTORS

The current Directors and those serving duning all or part of the year are

Kieran Poynter Charrman
Non-Executive Director

John Phizackerley Chief Executive Officer {resigned 7 March 2013)
Execuiive Director {resigned 9 Apnl 2013)

Yasuo Kashiwag Intenm Chief Executive Officer (appointed 7 March 2013)
Executive Director

Lewis O'Donald Executive Director

David Benson Executive Director

Paul Spanswick Executive Director

Dawid Farrant Executive Director (resigned 14 September 2012)

Keny Kimura Executive Director {resigned 30 August 2012)

Shigesuke Kashiwag Executive Director (appointed 5 December 2012, resigned 8 Apnl 2013)

Sir Andrew Cahn Non-Executive Director (apponted 19 July 2012)

Jeremy Bennett Non-Executive Director {appointed 19 Apnl 2012}

Masanon Iltatan Non-Executive Director

Dame Clara Furse Non-Executive Director (resigned 1 May 2013)

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

As at the date of this report and dunng the relevant financial year, ndemnities are and wera in force
under which the Company has agreed to indemnify certan Directors of the Company, directors of
certan associated Companies to the extent permitted by law and in accordance with the Company's
artcles of association, in respect of certan losses and lhabiities ansing out of in connection with, the
executon of ther powers, duties and responsibilities, as Drectors of the Company in addition, NHI
effected a global Dwectors and Officers habiity mnsurance programme for the benefit of the Nomura
Group

GOING CONCERN

The Company's business actwities, together with the factors lkely to affect its future development,
performance and position are set out in this report Its objectives, policies and processes for nisk
management, and s exposures to credit and hquidity nsk, are descnbed in note 19 to the financial
staterments Its capital management procedures and avalable capital resources are descnbed In note 21

The company has receved injections of ordinary share captal n November 2012, December 2012 and
January 2013 to support its capital positon While market and regulatory pressures reman challenging,
opportunities for revenue growth exst

The Drectors have a reascnable expectaton that the company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly the financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED}
DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The Directors who were members of the Board at the tme of approwng the Drectors’ report are listed
on the previous page Having made enquines of felow Directors and of the Company's auditors, each
of these Directors confirms that

+ to the best of each Director's knowledge and belief, there 1s no information relevant 1o the
preparation of ther report of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and

» each Director has taken all the steps a Director might reasonably be expected to have taken to
be aware of relevant audit information and i{o estabhsh that the Company’s auditors are aware
of that information

AUDITORS
The Audtors, Emst & Young LLP, have expressed ther wilingness to continue in office and a resolution

re-appointing them as Audtors and authonsing the Directors to determine ther remuneration will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Andrew Eames
Company Secretary

22 July 2013

Company registration number 1350505
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for preparng the Annual Report and the financial statements In
accordance with apphcable law and regulations

Company law regquires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that
law the Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with Unted Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law)
Under company law the drectors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they gwve a true and far view of the state of affars of the Company and of the profit or loss of
the Company for that penod In prepanng these financial statements, the Directors are required to

« select sutable accounting polices and then apply them consistently,
make Judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explaned in the financial statements, and

The Directors are responstble for keeping proper accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explan the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other Ireguianties




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NOMURA
INTERNATIONAL PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Nomura International Plc (“the Company™) for the year
ended 31 March 2013 which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, Statement of Total Recognised
Gams and Losses, Reconcilhiation of Movement in Shareholders’ funds, the Balance Sheet and the
related notes 1 to 29 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, i accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explamed more fully 1n the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 7. the Directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view Qur responsibility 1s to audit and express an opmion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit mvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures m the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. whether caused by fraud or error Tlis includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s circumstances and have been consistently
apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
Directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial
and non-financial information 1n the annual report to 1dentify material inconsistencies with the audited
financial statements If we become aware of any apparent matenial misstatements or inconsistencies
we constider the imphications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

[n our opinion the financial statements

o give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 March 2013 and of its loss
for the year then ended.

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and

* have been prepared 1 accordance with the requiremenis of the Companies Act 2006




Opinien on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opimion the mformation given in the Directors Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared 1s conststent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report n respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2006 requires
us to report to you 1f. in our opinion

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
1ecetved from branches not visited by us, or

« the financial statements are not n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

s certain disclosures of directors” remuneration specified by law are not made, or

e we have noticcerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

gral‘ A_ YQ LL]D

David Canming-Jones (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

W July 2013 ’




NOMURA INTERNATIONAL PLC

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

The notes on pages 15 to 85 form part of these financial statements

All profits and losses noted above are derwved from continuing activities

10

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Notes $°000 $000
1(c},2  TRADING PROFIT 1,882,336 2,987,499
3 Other operating ncome 2,280 4
1,884,616 2,987,503
1(d),4  Interest recenvable and simiar income 1,185,770 1,886,036
1{d)4  Interest payable and similar charges (2,061,746) {4,055,131)
Net interest payable {875,976) (2,069,095)
General and admmnistrative expenses (1,487,985) {2,008,128)
Exceptional loss {59,330) -
OPERATING LOSS (538,675) (1,087,720)
Interest payable on subordinated
borrowings (196,562) {178,054)
5 LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE TAXATION (735,237) (1,265,774
7 Tax credit on loss on ordinary activities 6,255 20,100
LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES AFTER
TAXATION (728,982) (1,245,674)




NOMURA INTERNATIONAL PLC

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Notes

Loss for the financial year
6 Actuanal loss on defined benefit penston scheme
1{e),18 Gan on avallable-for-sale investments
1(e),18 Realised {gains)/losses on avalable-for-sale investments
reclassified to the profit and loss account on disposal

Total recognised losses relating to the year

2013 2012
$000 $'000
(728,982) (1,245,674)
. (2,525)

215 1,890
{2,280) (4)
(731,047) (1,246,313)

The notes on pages 15 to 85 form part of these fnancial statements

11




NOMURA INTERNATIONAL PLC

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Notes

Loss on ordinary actvities after taxation

Other recogrised {gans) and losses relating to the year

Actuanal loss on pension scheme
Gan on available-for-sale investments

Realsed gains on avalable-for-sale nvestments
reclassified to the profit and loss account on disposal

New share capital subscribed
Movement on share-based payment reserve

Share premum
Net addtion to shareholders’ funds
Opening shareholders' funds at 1 Apnil

Closing shareholders' funds at 31 March

The notes con pages 15 to 85 form part of these financial statements

12

2013 2012
$000 $000
(728,982) {1,245,674)
- (2,525)

215 1,890
(2,280) (4)
1,362,622 1,142,540
113,626 188,943

- 18,747
745,201 103,917
3,379,658 3,275,741
4,124,859 3,379,658




NOMURA INTERNATIONAL PLC

BALANCE SHEET AT 31 MARCH 2013

Notes

10
11,20

(e}, 11,20
1{e}, 11,20
11

11

11,13

11
11

1(e),11,20

1(e),11,20

11

11

11,14

11,16

FIXED ASSETS

Intangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets

Fixed asset Investments
Avallable-for-safe Investments

CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets held for
trading

Financial assets designated
at far value through profit
and loss

Collateral pad for secunties
purchased under
agreements to resell
Collateral pad for secunties
borrowed

Other debtors

Investments - time deposits
Cash at bank and in hand

CREDITORS (amounts
falling due within one year)
Financial llabilities held for
trading

Financial labilities designated
at far value through profit
and loss

Collateral received for
securties sold under
agreements to repurchase
Collateral recewved for
securties loaned

Other creditors

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

CREDITORS (amounts
falling due after more than
ohe year)

NET ASSETS

222,479,979

23,168,919

136,688,632

16,426,713
14,994,715
1,652,903
5,972,475

{211,746,949)

(10,585,981)

(137,376,879)

(9,903,404)
(41,514,907)

13

2013
$000

322,064

421,385,336

(411,128,120)

10,257,216

2012
$'000

51,892
339,509
34,025
4,588

210,508,595

24,008,145

129,060,182

31,245,375
17,538,441
632,654
4,664,862

(198,269,361)

(16,492,155)

(134,861,200)

(22,686,665)
(30,173,343)

10,579,280

{6,454,421)

4,124,859

430,114

417,658,254

(402,482,733)

15,175,521

15,605,635

{12,225,977)

3,379,658




NOMURA INTERNATIONAL PLC

BALANCE SHEET AT 31 MARCH 2013 (CONTINUED)

Notes
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
17 Called up share capital
18 Share premium
18 Redenomination reserve
18 Other reserve
18 Capital redemption reserve
18 Avallable-for-sale reserve
18 Share-based payment reserve
18 Profit and loss account

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS - Equity

Approved by the board of Directors on 22 July 2013 and signed on its behalf by

P

Yasuo Kashwag
Director

The notes on pages 15 to 85 form part of these financial statements

14

2013

$'000

7,854,294
18,747
25,921

(100,337)
184,499
8,010
582,486

{4,448,761)

4,124,859

6,491,672
18,747
25,921

(100,337)
184,499
10,075
468,860
(3,719,779

3,379,658




NOMURA INTERNATIONAL PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2013

{a)

(b)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the histoncal
cost convention, as modified by the inclusion of trading secunties, denvatves and other financial
instruments at far value n accordance with United Kingdom Generaly Accepied accounting
standards, as defined 1n note (b) below

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained within ihe Companies Act 2006
from hawing to prepare consoldated financiai statements since it 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of
Nomura Europe Holdings plc, a company registered in the UK These financial statements have
been prepared on a company only basis

Where appropnate, prior year figures have been restated to conform with current year
presentation

fFair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company holds a signiicant portion of financial instruments at farr value, as descnbed below
A description of the Company’s polcies with regards to its application of far value measurements
to signficant financial instruments 18 as follows

{1) Valuat fair value instrument:

The far value of financial instruments 1s the amount at which the instruments could be
exchanged = a current transaction between wiling parties, other than in a forced or
quidation sale

The best evidence of far value 15 quoted prices n an active market Therefore, the far
value of financial instruments, including exchange-trading secunties and dervatives 1s based
on quoted market prices on exchanges or other broker/dealer quotations

Where quoted market pnces or broker/dealer quotations are not avalable, prnces for similar
nstruments or valuation prcing models are considered in the determination of farr value
Valuation pncing models consider contractual terms, position size, underlying asset prices,
nterest rates, dwvidend rates, tme value, volatity and other statistical measurements for
the relevant nstruments or for instruments with similar charactenstics These models also
incorporate  adustments relating to counterparty and the Company’s own credit nsk, the
adminustrative costs of servicing future cash flow and market hquidity adjustments These
adjustments are fundamental components of the far value calculation process The
valuation technique used maximises the use of market nputs and minmises the use of
entity-specific inputs which are unobservable in the market

15




NOMURA INTERNATIONAL PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2013 (CONTINUED)

1

(b)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Far Value of Financial Instniments (continued)

U}

()

(i)

Valuation of fair value instruments {continued)

Valuation pricng models and ther underlying assumptions impact the amount and timing
of unrealzed gans and losses recognised, and the use of dfferent valuation pricing
models or underlying assumptions could produce different financial results Any changes In
the fixed income, equity, foreign exchange and commodity markets can impact the
Company's estimates of far value in the future, potentally aflecting trading and non-
trading gans and losses The Company's estmates of far value may involve greater
subjectvity due to the lack of transparent market data avalable upon which to base
assumptions underlying valuation pricing models

Recogrition of day 1 gains and losses

The far value of a financial instrument 1s normally the transaction price (e the far value
of consderation given or recewved) In some cases, however, the far value at inception will
be based on a valuaton pncing model incorporating only observable parameters 1n the
market or on other observable current market transacticns in the same instrument, without
modification or repackaging Where such valuatton techniques are used to derve far
values from market observable inputs, the difference between far value and the transaction
pnce 1s recognised N the profit and loss account

Valuation techniques incorporating sigrificant unobservable parameters may also be used
to determine farr value at nception In such cases, the difference between the transaction
price and model value 15 only recognised in the profit and loss account when the inputs
become observable, or when the instrument 1s derecognised

Fair value option

Certain fimancial instruments may be designated at far value by management when one of

the following criteria 18 met

1) The financial instrument contains an embedded derwative that signficantly modifies the
cash flows resulting from the financial instrument, or

2) Far value will elminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition
Inconsistency that would otherwise result from rmeasunng related financial instruments
on different bases, or

3) The financial instrument 15 part of a group of financial instruments both managed and
evaluated on a far value basis, n accordance with a documented nsk management or
investment strategy Information about these financial instruments 1s provided internally
on a far valus basis to the Company’s key management personnel

The far value option election under 1) and 2} above s undertaken on a product-by-
product basis This only applies to those instruments that meet one or more of the above
criteria, where farr value would provide a fairer representation of the nsks associated with
those instruments Once made, the far value option election 1s Irrevocable

16




NOMURA INTERNATIONAL PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2013 {CONTINUED})

1.

(c)

(d)

()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Trading Profit
0] Principal Transactions Income and Expenses

Principal transactions income and expenses Iinclude reallsed and unrealised gamns and
losses from propretary trading actwvities, asset finance, customer trading actwities, pnvate
equity and profits on disposals of related party nvestments Pnncipal transactions income
and expenses are generated predominantly by financial mstrumerts held for trading and
financial instruments designated at far value through proft or loss Costs directly
attrbutable to trading are treated as a deduction from trading profit to more fairly
represent dealing profit and commission sharing agreements

)} Fees and Commussion Income and Expenses

Fees and commission Income and expenses mnclude gans, losses and fees, net of
syndication expenses, ansing from secunties offerngs in which the Company acts as an
underwriter or agent, fees eamed from the prowvision of financial adwvisory services, and
commission income from the provision of brokerage services

Trading profit anses on a strategy basis across a range of instruments It 1s presented on a net
basis, even though the corresponding financial assets and labilites may not have been offset on
the balance sheet In accordance with the presentation requirements of FRS 25

Interest Receivable and Interest Payable

Interest recevable and payable ncludes dividends and interest paid and eamed on secunties
postions, Interest on fmancial instruments designated at far value through proft or loss,
instruments carned at amortised cost, Including secunties bought and sold under repurchase
agreements, and amounts receivable and payable on bank deposits and bank borrowings

Interest recewvable and payable 1s recognised n the profit and loss account using the effective
nterest rate method for interest beanng financial assets and liabilities carmed at amorhised cost
The effectve interest rate method 18 a method of calculating the amoriised cost of a financeal
asset or lability (or a group of assets and labiities) and of allocating the interest income or
Interest expense over the relevant penod  The effective interest rate 15 the rate that exactly
discounts the expected future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
nstrument, or when appropnate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the Instrument
This calculation takes into account the impact of all fees and commissions pad or received
drrectly attrbutable transaction costs, and discounts or premiums that are integral to the effective
interest rate

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments within the scope of FRS 28 are classified ether as financial assets or
labilities at far value through profit or ioss, loans and recewables, financial habiliies at amortised
cost, avallable-for-sale investments or held-to-maturity investments

The Company determines the classification of its financial assets on ntial recognition depending
on the purpose for which the financial nstruments were acquired and ther charactenisics For
hybnd nstruments, the Company considers whether a contract contans an embedded dervative
when the entty first becomes party to it, and determines the appropnate classification at this time
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2013 (CONTINUED)

1.

()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial Instruments {continued)
In accordance with FRS 26, all financiali mstruments are intially measured at far value

)] Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial nstruments at far value through profit or loss includes financial instruments held
for trading and financial instruments designated upon tial recognition as at far value

through profii and loss

a Financial iInstruments held for trading

Financial assets and labities are classifed as held for trading If they are acguired for
the purpose of seling N the near term or are part of a portfolio of identified financial
nstruments that are managed together and for which there 15 evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit taking These mnstruments are generally recognised
as regular way transactions, on a settlement date basis Dernvatives, ncluding
separated embedded dernvatives, are also classified as held for trading

Dernvative instruments, as detaled in note 20, are used for tradng and nsk
management purposes  In accordance with FRS 26, all denvatves are recognised
imtially and subsequently carred at far value, with dervatwes having positive far
values carried as assets and denvatives with negative far values camed as habilities
on the balance sheet

Some hybnd contracts contain both a denvative and a non-denvative cornponent  In
such cases, the dervative component I1s termed an embedded dervative The
majorty of hybrd contracts are designated at far value through proft or loss as
descnbed below However, where the economic charactenstics and nsks of
embedded denvatives are not closely related to those of the host contract, and the
far value option 18 not elected, the embedded denvative 1s bifurcated and reported at
far value with gans and losses being recognised in the profit and loss account

b Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit and loss

Any financial asset or financial habiity within the scope of FRS 26 may be designated
when nitially recognised as a financial asset or financial labiity at far value through
profit or loss, assuming the cntena described in note i(b} () are met, except for
nvestments In equity instruments that do not have a quoted market pnce in an active
market, and whose far value cannot be relably measured

The Company applies the far value option to the following instruments

e Loans and recewvables and repos and reverse repos which are nsk managed on a
far value basis The Company elects the far value option to mitigate income
statement volatiity caused by the difference in measurement basis for loans and
recevables and the denvatives used to nsk manage those instruments,

e Structured notes held and 1ssued The far value option 15 elected pnmarnly as
these financial nstruments cortains an embedded denvative that significantly
modifies the cash flows resuling from the financial instrument,
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NOMURA INTERNATIONAL PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2013 {CONTINUEDY}

1.

(e)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fiancial Instrument ntinued

)

+ Financial labilhes associated with continuing involvement in assets derecognised
under FRS 26 The far value opton 1s elected to mitigate income statement
volatiity which would arse between these labitties and ther related assets which
are measured at far value,

« Prepad OTC Contracts These are transactions for which an initial investment of
greater than 90% of the notional of the embedded denvative has been pad or
recaived The nsk on these financial instruments, both financial assets and financial
habities, 15 pnmarly hedged using financral instruments categonsed as held for
tracding, and

e Other Financial Liabiittes These Include financial habilities such as those that anse
upon the consohdation of certan special purpose entiies and those that anse as a
result of continuing recognition of certan financial assets and the simultaneous
recognition of an associated financial labity

Financial instruments designated at far value are generally recogrised on a settlement
basis, when the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
Instrument

When a far value financial asset or hability 1s recognised initially, the Company measures i
at its far value and transaction costs are taken directly to the profit and loss account  |If
a relable measure becomes avalable for a financial asset or liabibty where such a
measure was not previously avalable, and the asset 1s required to be measured at far
value f a relable measure s avalable, the asset or labiity shal be remeasured at far
value and the difference between its carrying amount and far value recognised in profit
and loss Al relably measurable far value financial assets and liabilbies are subseguently
held at far value untl derecognition

Gains or losses on financial instruments at far value through profit and loss, including
gans and losses due to changes in far value, are recognised n profit and loss withuin
trading profit

Financial instruments at amortised cost
a. Loans and receivables

Loans and recenvables are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or  determinable
payments that are not quoted in an actve market Loans and recewvables are nitally
recogrised on settlement date at far value, includng any drect and ncremental
transaction costs After inibal measurement, loans and recewvables are subsequently
carned at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
mpairment  Amortised cost 1s calculated taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and
transaction costs Gans and losses are recognised in the profit and toss account when
the loans and recewables are derecogruised or mpawed, as well as through the
amortisation process

Loans and recewables include collateral paid for secuntes purchased under agreements to
resell and collateral paid for secunties borrowed descnbed below
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NOMURA INTERNATIONAL PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2013 (CONTINUED)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Emnancial Instruments (continued}

b Financial habilities at amorhsed cost

Financial labilities at amortised cost include financial obligations such as cash collateral
receved for securties sold under agreements to repurchase, cash collateral recewved for
securities loaned, subordinated debt, commercial paper as well as creditors Financial
labitles at amortised cost are ntialy recogmsed on  setilement date  After inibial
measurement, these instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method  Amortised cost 15 calculated by taking Into account any
discount or premium on the issue and costs that are an Integral part of the effective
interest rate

Collateral recewed for securtes sold under agreements to repurchase and collateral
received for secunties loaned are further discussed below

¢ Collateral paid for secunties purchased under agreements to resell and collateral
received for securities sold under agreements to repurchase

The Company enters into agreements with counterparties for them to sell to the Company
certain secunties and then repurchase them at a later date  These securities are excluded
from the Company's balance sheet and the cash amount pad by the Company 18 shown
In debtors as collateral pad for secunties purchased under agreements to resell

The Company also enters into agreements to sell certan secunties to counterparties and
then repurchase them at a later date These securites are retaned on the Company’s
balance sheet and where they are to be rehypothecated by the transferee are shown
within held for trading pledged as colateral  The cash amount recewed by the Company
1 shown within creditors as collateral recewved for securities sold under agreements (o
repurchase

The difference between sale and repurchase price 15 accrued over the Ife of the
agreements using the effective interest rate method

d Collateral paid for securities barrowed and collateral received for secunties loaned

The Company enters into agresments with counterparties for them to lend to the
Company certan secunties which are then returmned to the lender at a later date These
secunties are excluded from the Company’'s balance sheet and the cash amount pad by
the Company 15 shown in debtors as collateral paid for securities borrowed

The Company also enters into agreements to lend certan secunties to counterparties, to
be returned at a later date These secunties are retaned on the Company's balance
sheet and shown within held for trading pledged as collateral where they are able to be
rehypothecated by the transferee  The cash amount receved by the Company 15 shown
within creditors as collateral recewed for securtes loaned The transfer of the secunties
to counterparttes 1s only reflected on the balance sheet if the nsks and rewards of
ownership are also transferred
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2013 (CONTINUED)

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Financial Instruments (continued)

() Available-for-sale investments

Avallable-for-sale Investments are those non-dervative financial assets that are designated
as avalable-for-sale or are not classified n any of the two precedng categories
Avallable-for-sale investments are intially recogrused at far value and are subsequently held
at far value with unrealised gans or losses being recognised in the statement of total
recogmised gans and losses Transactton costs on equty mvestments classified as
avalable-for-sale are capralsed on bl recognition of the investment

Avalable-for-sale nvestments In equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price
N an active market and whose far value cannot be relably measured are measured at
cost

When the investment 15 disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
the statement of total recognised gans and losses 1s recognised in the profit and loss
under other operatng income or other operating expenses Where the Company holds
more than one nvestment n the same secunty, they are deemed to be disposed of on a
first-in  first-out basis lLosses ansing from the mparment of such investments are
recognised within other operating ncome or expense, having been removed from the
cumulative gan or loss previously recognised in the statement of total recogrised gains
and losses Any foreign exchange gans or losses ansing on avalable-for-sale financial
Investments are recogruised In profit and loss

Interest earned whilst holding avallable-for-sale mvestments 1s reported In interest recevable
and similar income using the effectve interest rate  Dmdends eamed whilst holding
avallable-for-sale investrments are also recognised in the proft and loss account under
Interest recewable and similar ncome

(v) Held-to-matunty investments
As at the balance sheet date, the Company held no held-to-matunty investments

(i Imparment

The Company assesses at the balance sheet date whether there 15 objective ewvidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets 1S impared A financial asset 18 considered impaired If,
and only if, there 1s objective ewidence of imparment as a result of one or more loss events that
occurred after the mtial recogmion of the asset and pnor to the balance sheet date, and that
loss event has had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can
be relably estmated When estimating the potentral mmpact of an imparment loss on a
collateralised financial asset, expected future cash flows, both from the asset and the associated
collateral, are assessed

{ Loans and receivables
For loans and recewables, the amount of imparment loss 1s measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estmated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s ongmnal effective interest rate
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1.

U

@

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment (continued)

The amount of the loss 1s included in the profit and loss account If (N a subsequent
penod the amount of the mmparment loss decreases, and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurrng after the imparment was recognised, the previously
recognised 1mpairment loss 1s reversed In the profit and loss account

(m Financial assets at cost

If thers 15 objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unguoted
equity mnstrument that 18 not carmed at far value because ts far value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a dervative asset that 15 Inked to and must be settled by the delivery of
such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the mparment loss 1s measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset  Such mparment losses shall not be reversed except on realisation

() Available-for-sale investments

For avalable-for-sale investments, the Company assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there 18 objective ewidence that an investment or group of Investments s
impaired

In the case of equity nvestments classified as avalable-for-sale, abjective ewidence would
nclude a significant or prolonged decline in the farr value of the nvestment below its cost
Where there 1s evidence of imparment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current far value, less any mparment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the profit and loss account - 15 removed from equity
and recognised In the profit and loss account Imparment losses on equity Instruments
are not reversed through the profit and loss account, increases in ther far value after
mpairment are recognised directly i equity

In the case of debt instruments classiied as avalable-for-sale, imparment s assessed
based on the same crtena as financial assets camed at amortised cost Interest
continues to be accrued at the ongmnal effectve interest rate on the reduced carrying
amount of the asset and I1s recorded as part of interest recewnvable and similar income  If,
N a subsequent year, the far value of a debt instrument Increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurrng after the imparment loss was recognised in
the profit and loss account, the mparment loss 1s reversed through the profit and loss
account

Derecognition

Transfers of financial assets and labilities are assessed to determne If assets can be
derecognised The Company derecognises financial assets when signficantly all the nsks and
rewards of the asset are transferred If significantly all the risks and rewards of the asset are
retaned, the Company retains the financial assets on its balance sheet with an associated hability
for consideration recewved It the Company nesther transfers nor retans significantly all the nsks
and rewards of the transferred asset, but retans control over the asset, 1t recognises the
transferred asset and an associated labiity measured on a basis that reflects the nghts and
obligations retained by the Company
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(h)

U

()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Oftsething financial instruments

Financial assets and {inancial habilities are presented on a gross basis unless the Company has a
current legally enforceable nght to set off the financial asset and fnancial habilty and the
Company intends to settle the financial asset and financial habiity on a net basis

Financial guarantees

The Company ssues financial guarantee contracts which require the Cormpany to reimburse
holders of such guarantess for any losses suffered due to a falure by specified debtors to make
payments when due as specified by the terms of an underlying debt instrument Such financial
guarantees are nitllly recognized at far value The amount intially recognized ncludes an
adjustment for transaction costs which are drectly attnbutable to the issuance of the guarantee
On a subsequent measurement basis, value of the financial guarantee 15 adjusted to reflect the
tugher of the best estimate of the amount required to settle the probable obligation at the
reporting date Any amount recognized i1s net of cumulative amortization previously recognized

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of colateral requred depends on an assessment of the credit nsk of the
counterparty Guidelnes are in place covenng the acceptabiity and valuaton of each type of
coflateral

The mamn types of collateral obtained are as follows

¢ For securties lending and reverse repurchase transactions, cash or secunties,
e For commercial lending, charges over financial and/or non financial assets, and
» For denvatives, cash or secunties

Management monitors the market value of collateral, and will request additional collateral In
accordance with the undertying agreement

The Company also makes use of master netting agreements with counterparties with whom a
significant volume of transactions are undertaken Such an amangement provides for a single net
settlement of all financial instruments covered by the agreement in the event of default on any
one contract Master netting arrangements do not normally result in an offset of balance-sheet
assets and liabilities unless certain conditions for offsetting under FRS 25 apply

Althocugh master netting arrangements may significantly reduce credit nsk, it should be noted that
e Credit nsk 1s elminated only to the extent of the amounts due to the same counterparty , and

e The extent to which overall credit nsk 1s reduced may change substantially within a short
period because the exposure s affected by each transaction subject to the arrangement
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(k)

0

(m}

)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fixed Assets and Depregiation

Fixed assets are stated at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulaied imparment losses Construction N progress is capritalsed on a
floor-by-floor basis from the completion date of each floor The carrying values of tangible fixed
assets are reviewed for imparrment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying
value may not be recoverable

Depreciation rates are selected based on expected useful economic lives of the assets, taking nto
account the expected rate of technological developments, market requirements and expected use
of the assets The selected rates are regularly reviewed to ensure they remain appropriate to the
Company and fts crcumnstances Fixed assets are currently depreciated on a straight-hne basis in
order to write off therr cost over ther expected useful economic lives as follows

Long leasehald property Over the life of the lease
Furniture, equipment and software Five to ten years
Construction In progress Not depreciated until completed and transferred to

asset categores above

Fixed assets are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from Iits use or disposal Any gamn or loss ansing on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference belween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) i1s recogrused
in the profit and loss account as an exceptional item

Intangible Assets

Goodwil 18 the difference between the cost of an acqured entity and the aggregate of the far
value of that entity’s identifiable assets and labiities

Postive goodwill ansing on acquistion 1s capitalsed, classified as an asset on the balance sheet
and amortised on a straght lne basis over its useful economic life up to a maximum of 20
years It s revewed for mparment at the end of the first full financial year following the
acquisition and N other penods 1f events or changes in crcumstances indicate that the carrying
value may not be recoverable If an entity 1s subsequently sold or closed, any googdwill ansing
on acquisition that has not been amortised through the profit and loss account is taken Into
account in deterrmming the profit or loss on sale or closure

Al goodwil ansing i the financial statements relates to the acqustion of Lehman Brothers
businesses and I1s being amortised on a straight ine basis over a twenty year period

Fixed Asset Investments

Investments In subsidiary undertakings, which are outside the scope of FRS 26, are stated at
onginal cost less amounts written off where there has been imparment in value

Provisions

A provision Is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it ts probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required o settle
the obligation, and a reliable estmate can be made of the amount of the obligation
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1.

(o)

(p)

(@)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign Currencies

Transactions i foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the
spot exchange rate ruing at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and labilties
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date All differences ansing from the application of closing rates of
exchange, together with exchange gains/losses from trading actmties, are taken to the profit and
loss account Non-monetary items that are measured In terms of histoncal cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the niial transactions

Taxation

Current tax assets and labiities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
pad to the taxaton authorties, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s recogrised In respect of all tming differences that have onginated but not reversed
at the bajance sheet date where transachons or events that result in an obligation to pay more
tax or a nght to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date This 1s
subject to deferred tax assets only being recognised If it 1S considered more likely than not that
there will be sutable profits from which the fuiure reversal of the underlying timing differences can
be deducted Timing differences are the differences between the Company's taxable profits and its
results as stated In the financial statements, which are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent penods

Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply
n the percds in which the tming dfferences are expected to reverse based on tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Pension Costs

The Company operates a defined benefit pension plan, which requires contributions to be made
to a separately administered fund The defined benefit pension scheme was closed to further
accrual in October 2005

The cost of prowding benefits under the defined benefit plan 1s determined usng the projected
unit credit method, which attrbutes entitiement to benefts at the date the plan closed to the
curent penod to determine the present value of the defined benefit obligation and 1s based on
actuarial advice Past service costs are recognised i the profit and loss account on a straight-line
basis over the vesting penod or immediately if the benefits have vested When a settlement
{elminating all obligations for benefts already accrued) or a curtalment (reducing future cobligations
as a result of a matenal reduction In the scheme membership or a reduction In future entitlement)
oceurs, the obligation and related plan assets are remeasured using actuarial assumptions at the
date of the curtalment or settlement and the resultant gain or loss recognised in the profit and
loss account dunng the penod mn which the settlement or curtalment occurs Losses are
measured at the date that the employer becomes demonstrably committed to the transaction and
gains when all parties whose consent 1S required are irrevocably commitied to the transaction
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{q)

"

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Pension Costs (continued)

The interest element of the defined benefit cost represents the change In present value of scheme
obligations resulting from the passage of time, and s determined by applyng the discount rate to
the opening present value of the benefit obhgation, taking mnto account change in the obligation
durng the year The expected return on plan assets 1s based on an assessment made at the
begnning of the year of long-term market returns on scheme assets, adjusted for the effect on
the far value of plan assets of contributions receved and benefts pad durng the year The
difference between the expected return on plan assets and the interest cost is recognised In the
profit and loss account as other finance income or expense Actuanal gans and losses are
recognised in full N the statement of total recogmised gans and losses in the penod in which
they occur

The defined benefit pension asset or lability n the balance sheet comprses the total of the
present value of the defined benefit obligation (usng a discount rate based on high qualty
corporate bonds that have been rated at AA or equivalent status and broadly consistent term to
the labilities), less any past service cost not yet recognised and less the far value of plan assets
out of which the obhgattons are to be settled drectly Far value 18 based on market price
information and 1n the case of quoted secunties 1s the current bid pnce The value of a net
pension benefit asset 1S restricted to the sum of any unrecognised past service costs and the
present value of any amount the Company expects to recover by way of refunds from the plan or
reductions In the future contnbutions

In accordance with FRS 17, the defined beneft labiity 1s shown on the balance sheet net of
deferred tax

The amendments to FRS 17 require addiional disclosures to be made in the statutory accounts,
which have been included n note 6

Share-based payment

The ultimate holding company, Nomura Holdings, Inc, operates share-based awards schemes for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligble participants Such share-based awards
are classified as ether equiy-settled or cash-settled transactions depending on the terms of the
award

The cost of both the equity-settled and cash-settled transactions with employees and Drectors 1s
measured by reference to the far value at the date at which they are granted The far value of
the stock options as of the grant date 1s estimated using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model

The cost of equity-settled transactions s recognised in the profit and loss account, together with
a corresponding increase In reserves, representing the contrbution receved from the uttimate
holding company, over the penod in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully enttled to the award (the
'vesting date’) The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each balance
sheet date untl the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has exprred and
the Company's best estimate of the number of equity mstruments that will ultmately vest The
charge or credit to the profit and loss account for a penod represents the movement n the
cumulative expense recognised as at the begnning and end of that penod
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based pa ts (continued

Cash-settled transactions such as Notonal Stock Unit ("NSU") which will be setiled in cash are
classified as liability awards These are remeasured to far value at each bafance sheet date, net
of estimated forfaitures with the final measurement of cumulative compensation cost equal to the
settlement amount Simdar to the equity-settled transactions, compensation cost 15 recognised In
the profit and loss account over the vesting penod

Share Capital

Share capttal meeting the definion of an equty instrument under FRS 25 1s disclosed within
shareholders’ funds An eguity instrument 18 any contract that evidences a residual interest n the
assets of an entity after deducting all of ds habiities

Preference shares, that provide for mandatory redemption by the issuer for a fixed or determinable
amount at a fixed or determinable future date, or give the holder the right to require the 1ssuer to
redeem the instrument at or after a particular date for a fied or determinable amount, are
financial habiltes  Convertible preference share capital 1s a compound financial liabiity As required
by FRS 25, the components of compound financial instruments, that contan both labiity and
equity elements, are accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the
residual amount after deducting from the nstruments as a whole the amount separately
determined as the far value of the labiily component on the date of 1ssue

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no issued redeemable convertible participating
preference share capital

Operating Leases

Rental costs under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line
basis over the perod of the lease

Cash Flow Statement

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 1 {rewised) and has not
produced a cash flow statement, since the Company has more than 90% of its votng nghts
controlled by Nomura Holdings, Inc, in whose pubicly avalable fnancial statements it 1S
consolidated Copies of the financial statements of Nomura Holdings, Inc can be obtaned from
9-1, Nihonbashi 1-chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 103-8645, Japan
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2.

TRADING PROFIT

The whole of the Company’s trading proftt 1s derved from broking and dealing n secuntes,
comprising trading and sales n fixed income and equity products and related dervatives,
investment banking services, pnncipal, corporate and asset finance and private equity, to which all
net assets are attnbutable

a Segmental analysis

The trading profit 1s attnbutable to the following revenue streams

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

$'000 $'000

Net fees and commissions' 541,171 768,770
Principal transactions’ 1,611,630 2,600,354
Less attributable transaction expenses’ (270,465) (381,625)
Trading profit 1,882,336 2,987,499

$1,743,418,000 {2012 $2,968,277,000) of the trading profit in the year ended 31 March 2013 I1s
attributable to EMEA and $138,918,000 (2012 $19,222,000) to offshore markets Due to the
integrated nature of the Company’s business, it is not meaningful to provide a geocgraphical split
of the Company’s total assets

' Net fees and commissions’ includes gans, losses and fees, net of syndication expenses ansing from secunties cfferings

n which the Company acts as an underwnter or agent, and fees eamed from providing financial advisary services — Such
revenues do not mnclude revenues from secondary tradng actwties which are included n Principal transactons’
Commissicns ansing from broking securities are also included

2 ‘Prncipal transacticns’ includes realised and unrealised gans and losses from proprietary trading actwvities, asset finance,
customer trading actmvities and private equity

° attnbutable transaction expenses’ excludes sales credt amounts pad/receved from other Nomura CGroup entties These
amounts are included in general and admimsirative expenses
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2013 (CONTINUED)

2.

TRADING PROFIT (CONTINUED)

b. Analysis of net fee and commission income

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
$'000 $'000

Financial instruments not at far value
through profit or loss 444 777 635,337
Other fees and commission iNncome 96,384 133,433
Net fees and commissions 541,171 768,770

Fees and commission ncome and expenses from financial nstruments not at far value through
proft or loss include servicng and lending commitment fees (other than those included in
determining the effective interest rate), relating to financial assets and labiitles not carned at far

value through profit or loss

Other fees and commussion income and expenses include amounts arsing from secunties offerings
n which the Company acts as an underwnter or agent, commussions arnsing from broking

secunties and fees earned from providing financial advisory services

¢ Analysis of pnincipal transactions by financial instrument type

Year ended Year ended

Kl rch 2013 31 March 2012

$000 $'000

Financial instruments held for trading 1,082,232 2,750,040
Financial instruments designated at far value through

profit and loss 529,398 {149,686}

Pnncipal transactions 1,611,630 2,600,354

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

$000 $'000

Proft from sales of avallable-for-sale investments 2,280 4

2,280 4

included n ‘Profit from sales of avalable-for-sale investments’ are the amounts transferred from
reserves to the profit and loss account on the derecognition of avalable-for-sale Investments
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2013 (CONTINUED)

4,

INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE

Analysis of tota! interest iIncome and expense by financial instrument type

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
$'000 $'000
Interest receivable and similar income
Cash and short-term funds 65,808 68,073
Secuntes borrowed and reverse repurchase agreements 966,278 1,635,048
Other 11,567 12,914
1,043,653 1,716,935
Financial Instruments at far value through profit and
loss 142,117 269,101
1,185,770 1,986,036
Interest payable and similar charges
Overdrafts and loans (291,489) {360,044)
Secunties lent and repurchase agreements {1,486,857) (3,571,177)
Commercial paper - (1)
Other {195,357) (123,909)
{1,973,703) (4,055,131)
Far value financial instruments - payable {88,043} -
(2,061,746) {4,055,131)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2013 (CONTINUED)

5

LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION

Loss on ordinary activities before tax for the Company i1s stated after charging/{crediting)

Year ended

31 March 2013

$'000

Wages, salanes and other personnel costs 1,064,482

Social secunty costs 104,212

Pension costs — defined contrbution 40,363

Amortisation and depreciation (note 8 & 9) 110,185
Auditors' remuneration including expenses

- audt 1,680

- senvices relating to taxation 79

- all other services 1,840

Operating lease costs

- buildings 80,005

- other 1,172

Interest recevable from Nomura Group undertakings (443,610)

Interest payable to Nomura Group undertakings 974,021

'In addtion to the audt fee shown above, an amount of $1,026,545 (2012 $765,222) was borne

by Nomura Holdings, Inc

31

Year ended

31 March 2012

$'000

1,089,858
105,315
44,812
114,213

2,677
314
2,856

82,776
1,864
(545,343)
1,120,720




NOMURA INTERNATIONAL PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2013 (CONTINUED)

6.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEME

A full actuanal valuation of the defined benefit pension scheme was undertaken at 31 March 2013
by Premier Pensions Management Ltd, a qualfied independent actuary

Dunng the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company made no additional contnbutions and the
fund remaned in surplus The amount that can be recovered through reduced contributions N the
future 1s the present value of the labilty expected to anse from future service by current and
future scheme members less the present value of future employes contnbutions As the plan
closed to all future accrual with effect 31 October 2005, there 15 no future benefit accrual and
therefore no surplus 1s to be recognised in the Company's balance sheet The expected
employer's contrbution to the Company's defined benefit pension scheme for year ended 31
March 2014 15 Nil (2013 Nil)

Under the projected unit actuanal cost method the current service cost will increase as members

approach retirement

The major assumptions used by the actuary to calculate the defined benefit lability are set out
below

31 March 2018 31 March 2012 31 March 2011
% % %
Raie of ncrease N pensions in payment 362% 312% 360%
Rate of increase N pensions N 362% 312% 360%
deferment
Discount rate applied to scheme 4 65% 504% 5 50%
habilties
Inflation assumption 2 92% 2 32% 300%

Life expectancy from mortalty tables used to determine benelit obligations at

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Years Years
Male Member age 60 (ife expectancy at age 60) 301 283
Male Member age 40 (Iife expectancy at age 60) 334 303
Female Member age 60 (ife expectancy at age 60) 326 312
Female Member age 40 (ife expectancy at age 60) 358 332
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6

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The assets and habilities of the scheme and the expected long-terrm rates of return were

3IAM 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2011
% $'000 % $'000 % $'000
Equities - - 730 35,754
Bonds 284 282,282 324 253,862 4 60 222,715
Property 394 19,420 4 34 20,301 580 20,273
Cash 050 381 050 385 050 858
Annuities 465 55,258 504 53,775 -
Market value of assets 357,341 328,323 279,600
Present value of
scheme liabiihes (257,849) (222,288) (209,726)
Surplus In the scheme 99,492 106,035 69,874
Effect of surplus cap (99,492) {108,035) {68.874)

Recoverable deficit In

the scheme - - _
Deferred tax asset - - .
Net pension hability - - -

The expected return on assets does not allow for expenses as these are now paid drectly by the

Company

There 1s no charge to operating loss in relation to the defined beneft pension scheme (2012 NIl

The amount charged to other finance income
31 March 2013

$'000 $'000
Expected return on pension scheme assets 10,850 11,406
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (10,950) (11,406)

31 March 2012

Other finance income - -

Analysis of movements scheme assets dunng the year

31 March 2013

31 March 2012

$'000 $000
Deficit in scheme at beginning of year - -
Expected return on pension scheme assets 10,950 11,406
interest on pension scheme labilities {10,950) {11,406)
Contnbutions - 2,525
Actuanal gan - (2,525)

Defict in scheme at end of year
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6

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The amounts recognised in the STRGL for the year are set out below

31 March 2013

31 March 2012

$000 $'000
Actual return less expected retumn on pension scheme 39,525 38,465
assets
Experience losses ansing on pension scheme labilities (2,327) {1,305)
Changes in assumptions underlying the present
value of the pension scheme habilities (38,3606) (3,464)
Actuanal gan before adjustment due to movement In
surplus cap (1,168) 33,696
Adustment due to movement In surplus cap 1,168 (36,221)
Actuanal loss recogrised in STRGL (2,525)

The defined benefit pension scheme has no effect on the net assets and reserves of the

Company (2012 no effect)

Analysis of movemenis in benefit obligation and plan assets dunng the year

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
$'000 $'000

Change in benefit chhgations
Benefit obligations at beginning of year 222,288 209,726
Interest cost 10,950 11,406
Actuanal loss 42,308 4,769
Benefits pad (4,574) {(5,088)
Foreign currency exchange loss (13,123 (741)
Other adiustments - 2,217
Benefit obligations at end of year 257,849 222,289
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
$°000 $'000

Change in plan assets

Farr value of plan assets at begmring of year 328,323 279,600
Expected return on plan assets 10,850 11,406
Actuanal gan 39,525 38,464
Employer contnbubions - 2.525
Benefits pad from plan (4,400 (5,088)
Foreign currency exchange loss (17,056 (1,104}
Other adjustments - 2,520
Far value of plan assets at end of year 357,342 328,323
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6.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

FRS 17 requres that a history of amounts that were, or would have been, recogmised in the
STRGL be disclosed as set out below

31 March 2013

Y% $°000
Difference between expected and actual return on pension
scheme assets 1106% {a) 39,525
Experience gans and losses on pension scheme liabilities (0 90%) (D) {2,327}
Total amount recognised In STRGL 000% (b) -
31 March 2012
% $'000
Difference between expected and actual return on pension
scheme assets 1167% (a) 38,465
Expenence gains and losses on pension scheme llabiihes (0 58%) (b) (1,305}
Total amount recognised In STRGL 114% (b) (2,525}
31 Mar 11
% $'000
Difference between expected and actual return on pension
scheme assets 212% (a) 5,927
Expenence gans and losses on pension scheme liabihties {0 84%) (b) (1,765)
Total amount recogmised in STRGL (2 09%) (b) {4,393)
31 March 2010
% $000
Difference between expected and actual return on pension
scheme assets 11 14% {(a) 27,637
Experence gans and losses on pension scheme habiities 229% (b) 4,478
Total amount recognised in STRGL 2 02%)} (o) (4,158}
31 March 2009
% $'000
Difference between expected and actual return on pension
scheme assets 066% (a) 1,323
Experience gans and losses on pension scheme habities 037% (b) 449
Total amount recognised in STRGL (3 04%) (b) (3,815)

{8) Percentage based on scheme assets
{b) Perceniage based on present value of pension scheme labiities
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7

TAX CREDIT ON LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

(a) TAX CREDIT

Current Tax

UK corporation tax {crecit) at 24% {2012 26%)
Foreign tax suffered

Adustment In respect of previous pericds

Deferred Tax
Deferred taxation (credit) (note 15)

Tax on ordinary actmties

Current tax movements recognised In the STRGL
- FRS 17 Defined Benefit Pension
- Avallable-for-sale investments

Total tax credit for the year

{b) RECONCILIATION OF CORPORATION TAX CREDIT

Loss on ordinary activities before tax
UK Corporation tax credit at 24% (2012 26%)

Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Revenues deductible for tax purposes
Timing driferences
Tangible fixed assets

+« Share based payments

* Deferred emoluments

» General provisions

o Transition adjustment on adoption of FRS 25/26
Unutilised losses for the year carmed forward
Higher tax rates on overseas earnings
Adjustment In respect of previous periods

Current corporation tax credit for the year
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
$000 $°000
{8,348) (35,974)
5,383 17,812
{3,290) {(1,938)
{6,255) {20,100)
(6,255) {20,100}
(6,255) (20,100)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
$'000 $'000
{735,237} {1,265,774)
(176,457} {329,101)
25,679 24,858
(1,292) 4,631)
6,708 7,216
(6,484) 22,993
(6,657) 18,423
- 910
10,576 11,457
139,579 211,901
5,383 17,812
(3,290} {1,933)
{6,255) {20,100)
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8 INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Goodwili
Cost $'000
At 1 Apnl 2012 63,108
Additions -
At 31 March 2013 63,108
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2012 11,116
Charged durng year 1,765
Goodwill impairment 50,227
At 31 March 2013 63,108
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 -
At 31 March 2012 51,992

All goodwill recognised in the financial statements related to the acquisition of Lehman
Brothers businesses on 13 October 2008 The carrying amount of Lehman Goodwill has
been fully impared as at 31 March 2013 resulting in an imparment loss of $50,227,067
The value in use calculation used a discount rate of 13%, forecasted cash flows over the
remaining useful ife of the goodwill (155 years) and a growth rate of 225%
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9. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Construction Furniture,
In Long Equipment,
Progress Leasehold and Software Total
Cost $°000 $'000 $'000 $000
At 1 Apnl 2012 2,468 12,655 717,066 732,089
Transfers (2,827) 2,827 - -
Additions 773 279 69,681 70,733
Disposals - - (24,248) (24,248)
At 31 March 2013 414 15,661 762,499 778,574
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2012 - 4,198 388,382 392,580
Charged durng year - 483 107,937 108,420
Disposals - - (17,550) (17,550)
At 31 March 2013 - 4,681 478,769 483,450
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 414 10,980 283,730 295,124
At 31 March 2012 2,468 8,357 328,684 339,509
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10  FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Investment in
Subsidiary
Cost Undertakings
$'000
At 1 Aprl 2012 34,025
Additions -
Imparrment (9,103
At 31 March 2013 24,922
Provisions
At 1 Apnl 2012 and 31 March 2013
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 24,822
At 31 March 2012 34,025
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10. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

The investment in subsidiary undertakings represents the following

Name of Subsidia

Nomura
Nomura
Nomura
Nomura
Nomura
Nomura
Limited

Nomura
Limited

Nomura
Nomura
Nomura
Limited

Nomura
Limited

Nomura

Shares/

voting nghts

Investments {AH) Limited

PB Nominee Limited

Custody Normunees Lmited

D1 Nominee Limited

Derwvatives Cleanng Nominee bimited
PB Benefical Ownership Markets

Clearance and Settlement Nominge
BPS Lmited

Investment Advisor LLP

Private Equity Investment GP

Employment Services {Isle of Man)

Nominees Limited

Nomura com Limited

Nomura

International Leasing Limited*

Opsclear Limited”

Nomura

I&E Services Italy Limited”

IBJ Nomura Financial Products (UK) pic*
Tncorn Partners LLP*

* currently m members voluntary hquidation

held

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

50%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

40

Country of
incorporation and
reqistration

Guermnsey
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
Isle of Man
England and Wales
England and Wales
Ireland

England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales
England and Wales

Principal business
activihes

Investment
Investment
Investment
Investment
Investment
Investment

Investment
Investment adviser

Investment adwiser
Investment Manager

Employment Services

Custody
Dormant

In Liguidation
In Liquidation
In Ligudation
In Liqudation
In Ligudation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2013 (CONTINUED)

11.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Analysis of the Company’s financial assets and financial habilities by FRS 26 classification

2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
Availlable- Held for Desighated at Loans and Fiancial Total
for-sale trading farr value  recewvables labiltes at
ivestments through profit amortised
and loss cost
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Avallable-for-sale
Investments 2,018 - - - - 2,018
Held for trading - 222,479,979 - - - 222,479,979
Designated farr value
through profit and loss - - 23,169,919 - - 23,169,919
Collateral paid for securities
purchased under
agreements 1o resell - - - 136,688,632 - 136,688,632
Collateral paid for securties
borrowed - - - 16,426,713 - 16,426,713
Other debtors - - - 14,994,715 - 14,994,715
Investments - time
deposits - - - 1,652,903 - 1,652,903
Cash at bank and in
hand - - - 5,972,475 - 5,972,475
Financial Liabilities
Held for trading - (211,746,949) - - - (211,746,949)
Designated fair value
through profit and loss - - {10,585,981) - - (10,685,981)
Collateral recewved for
securities sold under
agreements to repurchase - - - (137,376,879) (137,376,879)
Cdllateral recenved for
securiiies loaned - - - (9,903,404) (©,203,404)
Other creditors - - - (41,514,907) (41,514,907}
Creditors {amounts faling
due after more than oneg
year) - - - - (6,454,421) (6,454,421)
2,018 10,733,030 12,683,938 175,735,438 {195,249,611) 3,804,813
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONTINUED)

Analysis of the Company’s financial assets and financial habilities by FRS 26 classification

(continued}

Financial Assets
Available-for-sale
investments

Held for trading
Designated far value
through profit and loss
Collateral paid for
securnties

purchased under
agreements to resell
Collateral paid for
secunties

borrowed

Other debtors
Investments - time
deposits

Cash at bank and in
hand

Financial Liabilities

Held for trading
Designated far value
through profit and loss
Collateral recewved for
securhies sold under
agreements to repurchase
Collateral recenved for
secunties loaned

Other creditors

Creditors (amounts falling
due after more than one
year)

2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012

Available- Held for  Designated Loans and Financial Total
for-sale trading  at far value recevables habilities at
mvestments through amortised
profit and cost

loss

$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $°000 $'000

4,588 - - - 4,588

- 210,508,585 - - 210,508,595

- - 24,008,145 - - 24,008,145

- - 128,060,182 - 129,060,182

- - 31,245,375 - 31,245,375

- - 17,538,441 - 17,538,441

. - 832,654 - 632,654

- - - 4,664,862 - 4,664,862

- (198,269,361) - - (198,269,361)

- - (16,492,155 - (16,492,155)

- - - - (134,861,209) (134,861,209)

- - - - {22,686,665) {22,686,665)

- - - - {30,173,343) {30,173,343)

- - - - (12,225,977} (12,225,977)

4,588 12,239,234 7.515,980 183,141,514 {199,947,194) 2,954,132
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11.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Analysis of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabiites by FRS 26 classification

(continued)

Included within the loans and recewnables above are the following positions with fellow Nomura Group

undertakings

Loans and receivables

Collateral pad for securties purchased under
agreements to resell

Collateral paid for secunties borrowed

Other debtors

Investments - tme deposits

Financial liabiities at amortised cost
Collateral received for securities sold under
agreements to repurchase

Collateral recewved for secunties lcaned
Other creditors

Creditors (amounts falling due after more than
one year)

Analysis of the Company’s financial assets and financial habihties by product type

2013 2012
$'000 $'000
60,764,689 55,182,835
6,176,545 13,706,948
7,537,184 5,464,738
1,082,190 404,357
75,560,608 74,758,878

(51,701,314)

{57.368,122}

{3,730,300) {13,631,207)
{25,081,915) (15,196,059)
(5,109,136) (12,203,447)
(85,622,665 (98,398,835)

The following table analyses the Company's avalable-for-sale investments, held for trading and
designated far value through profit and loss financial assets and liabilities by product type

Financial assets

Equity securities

Debt securities

Denvatives

Financial Instruments designated at far value
through profit and loss

Financial liabilities

Equity secunties

Debt securties

Denvatives

Financia! Instruments designated at far value
through profit and loss

43

013 2012

$'000 $000
7,497,921 9,659,599
34,837,128 34,312,080
180,146,948 166,541,524
23,169,919 24,008,145
245,651,916 234,521,328
(8,399,045) (9,194.,621)
(23,621,769) (22,327,154)
(179,726,135) {166,747,586)
{10,585,981) {16,492,155)
(222,332,930) {214,761,516)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2013 (CONTINUED)
11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Analysis of the Company’s financial assets and financial habilities by product type {conhnued)

Included within the financial assets and financial habilities above are the following positions with
fellow Nomura Group underiakings

2013 2012
$'000 $000
Financial assets

Equity secunties 760,245 3,874,173
Debt secunties 179,455 146,606
Denvatives 96,160,882 93,317,958
97,100,592 97,338,737

Financial iabilities
Equity securities (147,845) (256,870}
Debt securties (228,858) (286,678}
Dervatives {98,018,459) {86,256,645)
{98,395,162) (96,800,193}

Available-for-sale investments

Avallable-for-sale mvestments include unquoted equity mnstruments which are measured at cost
because ther far valug cannot be measured rehably As at 31 March 2013, such unquoted equity
instruments measured at cost compnsed of investments in other Nomura entities and market bodies
which the Company 18 required to hold for strategic purposes The value of such investments
measured at cost held at the balance sheet date amounted to $400,403 (2012 $3,996,355)
Financial assets and habilihes designated at far value through profit or loss

Refer to Note 1{g) () (b) for detals of instruments on which far value option applied

There 1s no matenal difference between the carrying amount and the amount contractually required
to be paid at matunty to holders of financial labities designated at far value through profit or loss
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12.

DERECOGNISED AND COLLATERALISED TRANSACTIONS
Transfers of financial assets, including pledges of collateral

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into transactions resulting in the transfer
of financial assets to thwd parties which may not result in the full derecogmition of the assets
under FRS 286

The following table shows the camying amount of financial assets sold or otherwise transferred
which do not qualfy for derecognition and contnue to be recogrised on the balance sheet,
together with therr associated financial llabiities

2013 2013 2013
Financial Financial Difference
assets llabilities
$'000 $'000 $'000
Collateral recewed for secunties sold 21,503,375 (21,602,534} (99,159)
under agreemenis to repurchase
Collateral received for secunties loaned 2,082,299 (2,043,570} 38,729
Other 990,857 {990,857} -
24,576,531 (24,636,961) (60,430)
2012 2012 2012
Financial Emangcial Difference
assets habilites
$'000 $'000 $'000
Collateral recewed for secunties sold 22,308,741 (22,044,796) 264,945
under agreements to repurchase
Collateral recewved for secunties loaned 2,491,749 (1,930,826) 560,923
Other 1,080,776 (1,080,776) -
25,882,266 {25,056,398) 825,868

Financial asset transfers which do not result in derecogniton predominantty result from secured
financing transactions such as repurchase agreements or secunties lending transactions Under
these types of transactions, the Company retans substantally all the nsks and rewards associated
with the transferred assets including market nsk, i1ssuer nsk, credit nsk and settlement nisk
Effectively, these assets are pledged as secunty for borrowings, represented by the associated
financial habimties recogmised Financial assets may also be transferred, but not derecognised, as
the nsks and rewards associated with those assets continue to be retained by the Company
through denvatives or stmilar instruments In such cases, the financial asset continues to be
recognised on balance sheet with an associated liability representing the cash recewved on the
transfer as a secured borrowing

The transactions above are conducted under standard terms used by financial market participants
as wel as requrrements determined by exchanges where the Company acts as intermediary
These transactions are conducted with counterparties subject to the Company’'s normal nsk
control processes The counterparties have the nght to resell or repledge the transierred financial
assets under standard market agreements
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12

DERECOGNISED AND COLLATERALISED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Continuing involvement

In addition to the financial assets transferred but not derecognised and retaned in their entirety on
the Company's balance sheet outined above, there are also a number of transactions in which
the Company nether retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial
asset As the Company retans control over those assets, 1t 1s considered to have a continuing
involvernent with those financial assets for accounting purposes

Financial assets transfers which result n continuing involvement result from the partial retention of
the nsks and rewards associated with those assets by the Company through denvatives or similar
nstruments In such cases, the financial asset continues to be recognised on balance sheet at
the level of the Company's continuing involvement with a corresponding hability

The following table shows the carrying amount of financial assets sold or otherwise transferred In
which the Company has contnung involvement, together with the level of the Company's
associated financial habilities and #s net economic exposure, representing the far value of the
associated dervatives or similar instruments

2013 2013 2013

Total carrying value of Total carrying value of Net economic

financial assets with associated habilities exposure
continung involvement

$000 $'000 $'000

982,693 (983,704) 1,011

2012 202 2012

Total carrying value o Total carrying value of Net economic

financial agsets with associated liabthities exposure
continuing involvement

$'000 $'000 $'000

3,939,497 {3,941,451) 1,954

46




NOMURA INTERNATIONAL PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2013 (CONTINUED)

12

13

DERECOGNISED AND COLLATERALISED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Financial assets accepted as collateral

Financial asseis are accepted as collateral as part of reverse repurchases arrangements or
securnittes barrowing transactions which the Company 1s permitted to selt or repledge under
standard market documentabion

The far value of financial assets accepted as collateral that the Company 15 permitted to sell
or repledge in the absence of defauli 1s $236 7 bilon (2012 $232 9 bilion} Of this amount,
$200 billion (2012 $190 billon) has been sold or repledged to comply with commitments
under short sale transactions or in connection with financing actvities  Included wiathin these
balances are $53 biflion {2012 %71 bilion) of balances due to felow Nomura Group
undertakings The corresponding obligation to return securties recewved which have been sold
or repledged 15 $1 9 billon (2012 $4 8 billion)

OTHER DEBTORS
2013 2012
$'000 $'000
Trade debtors 2,364,285 2,717,670
Broker balances 11,863,860 13,747 690
Taxation recoverable 43,010 82,734
Accrued interest and dvidends recevable 255117 348,314
Prepayments and accrued income 468,443 642,033
14,894,715 17,538,441

Included within debtor balances above are the following balances due from fellow Nomura
Group undertakings

2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Trade debtors 228,371 419,461
Broker balances 6,967,383 4,499,896
Accrued Interest and dvidends receivable 13,388 14,503
Prepayments and accrued income 328,042 530,878
7,537,184 5,464,738

Refer to note 19 for an aged analysis of Cther debtors which are past due but not impared
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14

OTHER CREDITORS

Loans and overdrafts

Trade creditors

Broker balances

Taxation payable

Other tax and social secunty payable
Accrued interest and dwvidends payable
Accruals and deterred income
Subordinated debt

2013 2012
$'000 $'000
8,029,664 9,642,448
4,211,646 4,465,060
26,836,808 14,400,488
1,518 9,301
59,546 65,221
290,869 399,775
084,856 1,191,050
1,100,000 -
41,514,907 30,173,343

Included within creditor balances above are the following balances due te fellow Nemura Group

undertakings

Loans and overdrafts

Trade creditors

Broker balances

Accrued Interest and dvidends payable
Accruals and deferred income
Subordinated debt

48

213 2012
$'000 $'000
7,653,357 8,987,335
195,729 398,184
15,868,614 5,143,167
77,566 136,200
186,649 531,173
1,100,000 -
25,081,915 15,196,059
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15

DEFERRED TAXATION

2013 2012

$'000 $'000
Tangible fixed assets 24,471 19,419
FRS 26 transition habibties (30,405) (42,303)
Other short-term tming differences 58,600 70,713
Unutilised tax losses 759,405 643,372
Deferred tax not provided {812,071) (631,201)

Deferred taxation has been calculated at 23% (2012 24%) being the UK corporation tax rate
from 1 Aprl 2013 The company has unutlized losses ansing of $ 3,301,764,799 (2012 §
2,680,716,000) that are avalable for offset against future taxable profits A deferred tax asset
of $ 759,405,000 (2012 $ 643,372,000) has not been recogmsed in respect of these losses
due to uncertanty surrounding the Company’s future proftability '

On 20" March 2013 as part of the Budget, the UK government has announced its intention
to legslate to reduce the man rate of corporation tax to 21% with effect from 1 Apnl 2014
and further to 209% with effect from 1 Apri 2015 The reduction to 23% was subsequently
enacted prior to 31 March 2013 under the prowsicns of the Prowisional Collection of Taxes
Act 1968 and the effect of this reduction 1s therefare reflected in the above calculation of the
deferred tax fabiity The directors estimate that the effect of these changes will be to reduce
the Company's unrecognized deferred tax asset to $ 706,14¢,076"

Provision for deferred tax comprises 2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Timing differences 52,666 47,829
Losses 759,405 643,372
Deferred tax not provided (812,071 (691,201)

Total prowision for deferred tax - -
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16.

CREDITORS FALULING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

Collateral received for secunties sold under agreements

to repurchase

tLoans and overdrafts
Subordinated debt

2013 2012
$'000 $'000
2,079,421 4,750,977
4,375,000 7,475,000
6,454,421 12,225,977

Included within credtor balances above are $6,209,136 {2012 $12,203,447) of balances due to

fellow Nomura Group undertakings

Subordinated debt agreements

The amounts subject to Subordinated ioan agreements are wholly repayable as shown below

Short Term
Nemura Europe
Nomura Europe

Long Term

Nomura Europe
Nomura Europe
Nomura Europe
Nomura Europe
Nomura Europe

Holdings plc
Holdings plc

Holdings plc
Holdings plc
Holdings plc
Holdings plc
Holdings plc

Nomura Europe Holdings plc
Nomura Europe Holdings plc
Nomura Europe Holdings plc
Nomura Europe Holdings plc

The legal nature of the subordinated loans diffiers from that usually associated with debt

R ent

15 Apr 2013
23 Apr 2013

15 Apr 2013
23 Apr 2013
24 Dec 2013
15 May 2015
24 Apr 2017
07 Mar 2020
11 Mar 2020
12 Mar 2020
Perpetual

te

2013 2012
$'000 $'000
500,000 -
600,000 -
1,100,000 -
- 500,000

- 600,000

- 1,600,000

200,000 600,000
2,550,000

1,100,000 -
750,000 -
700,000 -
1,625,000 1,625,000
4,375,000 7,475,000

In a

winding up of the Company no amount will be pad in respect of the subordinated debt until all

other creditors have been pad i full

The interest rates on the subordinated loans are based on local nter bank borrowing rates and

nctude a margin to reflect the subordination Rates are generally fixed quarterly

The rates of interest applicable to the loans with matunties greater than five years are as follows

Nomura Euwrope Holdings plc
Nomura Europe Holdings plc
Nomura Eurcpe Holdings plc

07 Mar 2020
11 Mar 2020
12 Mar 2020
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17  SHARE CAPITAL

2013 Fully paid
Number  consideration

'000 $'000

US Dallar Qrdinary shares of $1 each 7,854,294 7,854,284
7,854,294

2012 Eully paid
NMumber  consideration

‘000 $000

US Dollar Ordinary shares of $1 each 6,491,672 6,491,672
6,491,672

The Company 1ssued $222,820,640 of ordinary shares in November 2012, $1,059,801,328
of ordinary shares n December 2012 and an addtional $80,000,000 of ordinary shares in
January 2013 to NEHS
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18 RESERVES

Share-
Capital based
redempti payment Available- Profit and Redenom
on  expense for-sale loss Other ination Share
reserve reserve resenve account Reserve Reserve premium
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000
At 1 Aprl 2012 184,499 468,860 10,076 (3,719,779  (100,337) 25,921 18,747
Retained loss for
the year - - - {728,982) - - -
Actuanal loss on
pension scheme - - - - - - -
Share-based
payment expense
for the year - 113,626 - - - - -
Gan on avalable-
for-sale
investments - - 215 - - - -
Realised gains on
avallable-for-sale
investments
reclassified to the
profit and loss
account on
disposal - - (2,280) - - - -
At 31 March 2013 184,499 582,486 8,010 (4,448,761}  (100,337) 25,921 18,747
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18.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's actvites nvolve both the assumption and transter of certan nsks which the
Company must manage The most mportant types of nsk are market nsk, credit nsk {(ncluding
counterparty credit nsk), iiquidty nsk, cash flow mnterest rate nsk and operational sk Market nsk
includes currency nsk, prnice nsk and farr value interest rate nsk

For further detall, please refer to the below website where Nomura Group Pillar 3 disclosures are
made

hitp /Awww nomuraholdings com/company/group/europe/pdf/p3d pdi

The Role of Financial Instruments

The Company holds or 1ssues financial instruments for two man purposes
s Tragding Actwvities - to facliate the needs of its chent base and for trading purposes on
its own account
e Financing Actwvities - to finance nts operations and to manage the interest rate and
currency nsk ansing from its financing actvities

Trading Activities

Trading Includes both customer-onentated actvites and positions that are taken for the
Company's own account These two actwviies are managed together

To meet the expected needs of its client base the Company mantans access to market liquicity,
both by engagng n two way business with other market makers and by camyng an inventory of
cash and dervatives products The Company also takes its own postions in the nterest rate,
credit, equity and foreign exchange s based on expectations of fulure clent demand and its own
views on the future drechion of markets

Within its trading actmities, the Company employs standard market terms and condibions

The financial instruments listed below are actively used by the Company They are used bcth to
facitate customer business, for own account trading as well as to manage nsk In the ordinary
course of busness these products are valued on a mark to market basis, with the resulting
income being recorded in trading profits

Cash Products Government bonds, corporate bonds, asset backed bonds,
convertible bonds and equities

Currency and Commodity Forward FX contracts, currency swaps, currency options,

Denvatives commodity forwards, commodiy swaps and commodity
options

Interest Rate Dervatives Interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements, forwards, opticns

and combinations of these producis

Equity Derwvatives Single stock, equity, index and variance swaps, ophons, warrants
and combinations of these products

Credit Denvatives Asset swaps, credit default swaps, credit options, credit baskets,

credit Inked notes, synthetc CDO tranches, CDO squared
tranches and combinations of these
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19.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED}
The Role of Financial Instruments (continued)

The interest rate, credit, equity and foreign exchange nsks that anse from actwities in these
products are managed through the Company's financial nsk management objectives and policies,
which are described in more detal in the next section

Financing Actities

The responsibility for unsecured funding, managing the liquidity pool and any resuling interest rate
and foreign exchange nsk les with the Treasury function The Treasury function 18 managed
globally and reports to the Chief Fmnancial Officer (CFQO) and s fully independent of the trading
activities  The Treasury functior’s pnmary responsibility 1s to pro-actively manage the hguichty and
financng needs of the Company wvia a dwversified financing programme, supported by a
comprehensve and tested contingency plan The Treasury function 1s not auihonsed to take
positions for its own account and it 1s not judged on the basis of profit

The distrbution of sources of funding and ther matunty profile are actively managed n order to
ensure access to funds and to avoid a concentration of funding at any ane time or from any one
source The man funding sources used by the Treasury function include capital, intercompany
borrowings, long term debt, and committed credit faciites We typically fund our trading actwities
on a secured basis through repurchase agreements, we beleve these funding actwvities In the
secured markets are more cost-effective and less credit sensitve than financing in the unsecured
market, we manage the nsks by transacting wth a large number of counterparties over varnous
durations with a derse range of secunty types

Risk Management Structure

The Board of Directors 1s ultimately responsible for identifying and centroling nsks through its
overall nsk management approach and approval of nsk strateges and prnciples 1t 18 advised by
the Board Risk Commitee of its immediate parent, NEHS Risk reporting and control s
undertaken by the following departments and committees within the Company

Capital Alfocation

The annual process for budgeting entity level capital needs 1s part of the ICAAP exercise which
takes place In comunction with the budget related processes The setting of all current and
budgeted capital requirements relating to UK-regulated entities 15 coordnated and challenged by
the Financial and Regutatory Control functions within EMEA Finance  The Financial and Regulatory
Control functions are also responsible for monitonng compliance with capital usage limits to ensure
capital adequacy targets are met

Treasury Department

The Treasury Depariment monitors comphance with the Company’s liqudity, currency and cash
flow policies, including that described under Financing Activiies above

Market Risk Management Department

The Market Risk Management department monitors and reports compliance with internally set
market nsk hmits and 15 completely independent of the business areas
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Risk Management Structure {continued)

Cradit Risk Management Department

The Credit Risk Management department monitors and reports compliance with nternally set credit
hmits and 1s completely independent of the business areas

Operational Risk Management Department

The Operational Risk Management Department monitors, evaluates, conducis forensic investigations
on operational nsk 1ssues and the intemal control framework and reports on these to both the
Aucht Committee and the Executve Committee The department 1s completely independent and
separate from the Internal Audit function

Finance Department

The Finance Department montors compliance with internally and externally set regulatory hmits and
guidelines

Risk Management Comrmittee

On behalf of the European Management Committee of Nomura Europsan Holdings, the Risk
Management Committee (RMC) considers and monitors the nsk exposures of the Company,
including market, counterparty credit, operational, mode! and liquidity nsks The RMC s also
responsible for the oversight of the Operational Risk Management Committee

internal Audit

The Nomura Group Internal Audit Department has responsibity to examine, evaluate and make
recommendations on the appropnateness and the effectiveness of the intemal control of all
business and operational actvibes

The Global Head of Intermal Audt has an independent reporting hne to the Internal Controls
Committee, the Charman of the NHI Audit Committee and the Audit Mission Directors in Tokyo

in EMEA, the Head of Internal Audit has an ndependent reporting tne to the Charmen of the
Audit Committees of NEHS and the Group The EMEA Head of Internal Audit also reports to
the Global Head of Internal Audit and locally to the Chief Executive Officer of NEHS

Intemal Audt adopts a nsk-based audt approach A risk assessment 1s formally carned out
annually using a globally agreed methodology and, where necessary, this 1s updated throughout
the year as a result of contnuous monitorng, on completion of audts and In response to
nternal or external events or incidents

The outcome of the Internal Audt risk assessment 1s used as a basis for determining the annual
Audit Plan Any regulatory or other required or expected audits are added to the Plan as well
as any Management Requests or Special Projects intiated by Internal Audt, such as pre-
implementation reviews, new business reviews or one-off assignments N response to significant
changes in the regulatory or business environment

Audit executon 15 alse nsk-based Key controls are identified and a vanety of techniques are
used to evaluate the adequacy of the design and the effectiveness ol the controls, including
inguiry and observation, sample testing and, in some cases, substantive testing
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED}

Internal Audit reports 1its findngs and the agreed action plans, target dates and responsible
owners to the relevant Audt Committee(s), Senior Management and Line Management as
approprate

The status of outstanding action plans 1s reviewed regulardy and reported to Management
perodically Internal Audit also performs valdation work for action plans which Management
represents as having been completed

Market Risk

Market nsk 1s the nsk that the far value or future cash flows of financial nstruments will
fluctuate due to changes in market varnables such as mnterest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equity prices and other parameters The Company classifies exposures mto ether trading or non-
traching portfohos Trading portfolios are exposed to market nsk and managed and monitored
daly based on a Value-at-Risk methodology which takes into account the vanation and the
interdependency between market vanables Non-trading positions are managed and monitored
using other sensitmity analysis

A Market Risk — Trading (including financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit and loss)

within the Company, there 1s a formal process for the allocation and management of Economic
Capttal {"NCAT") which 1s facilitated through the captal allocation agenda discussed by the
Capital Allocation Committee  The Executve Committee 1s chared by the President and Chief
Executive Officer cf the Company Day to day responsibiity for the NCAT calculation and the
setting and monitonng of nsk limits, within the nsk control framework, rests with the independent
Risk Management department, the head of which reports to the Chief Risk Ofiicer of the
Company and the Global Head of Risk Management

NCAT 1s the potential economic loss over a one-year horizon gwven a confidence nterval of
09 95% NCAT captures market, lquidity, credit, event, counterparty, loan and private equity rsk
NCAT I1s an effectve tool for performance evaluaton and capital allocation, but not for capital
adequacy In order to ensure captal adequacy, financial soundness is assessed under stressed
conditions, 1e worst-case nsk factor moves  Stress testing 1s undertaken quarterly on the basis
of histoncal scenano analysis

The Company uses the stabstical technique known as Value-at-Risk (VaR) as one of the tools
used to measure, monitor and review the market nsk exposures of its trading portfolios The
Risk Management Department calculates VaR numbers daily for all relevant businesses and these
figures are included in daly reporting to senior management
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Market Risk {continued)
A. Market Risk - Trading {continued)

Value at Aisk

VaR 18 a measure of the potenttal loss in the value of our tradng positions due to adverse
movements 1N markets over a defined time honzon with a specified confidence level Market nsks
that are incorporated in the VaR model include equity pnces, interest rates, credi, foreign
exchange rates, and commodities with associated volatiities and corretations

VaR Methodology and Assumptions

Nomura’s VaR methodology now uses histoncal simulation to estimate potential profit or loss
Historical market moves are repeatedly appled to the Company's curent exposure, forming a
distnbution of simutated portiotio returns  From this distnbution the requred potental losses can
be estimated at required confidence levels (probabilities)

VaR s calculated across the Company at a 99% confidence level  1-day VaR s used for internal
nsk management and mits, and 10-day VaR s used for regulatory captal The 10-day VaR Is
calculated using actual 10-day historical market moves  For internal information purposes Nomura
also calculates the ‘1% VaR' which represents the potential profits from the same distnbution
Differences between 99% and 1% measure can be used to demonsirate that markets do not
always follow a simple statistical probability model  Additicnally, Nomura calculates cther measures
used to complement VaR under recent regulation known as 'Basel 25 One of these, Stressed-
VaR (SVaR) 18 calbrated on a one-year window from a penod of fimancal stress Al VaR and
SVaR numbers are calculated within the same system using equvalent assumptions

The VaR model uses a default histoncal trme window of two years (520 business days) For nsk
management and back testing (see below), Nomura uses a weighted VaR For the calculation of
VaR, the probability weight assigned to each P&L in the historical simulaton scenarnos depends
on when 1t occurred  The older the observation, the lower the weight An exponental weighing
scheme 1s used with the exponential weights set to 0985 This chowe of parameter implies a
weighted average of the data set of 159 business day {ust over 7 months)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Market Risk (continued})
A Market Risk — Trading (continued)

The SvaR calculation uses one year of market data from ‘a pencd of financial stress’ The one-
year window 1s calbrated to be the one with the largest SVaR, gwven the Company's current
portfollo  The historical data used for SVaR 1s not exponentally weghted Given a set of
histoncal market moves, Nomura’s VaR model calculates revenues impacts for current portfolio
using sensitiviies ("Greeks”)  Using second order sensitvities (‘gamma’) for equity, rates and
foreign exchange, the VaR model 1s able to account for the non-lnear pay-off of options
Matenal basis nsks are captured ether by using dfferent time senes {eg stock vs ADR) or by
using senstivities and basis time senes (e g Bond / CDS credit spread basis)

Nomura's VaR model uses time seres for each individual underlying whenever avalable
Approximately 25,000 trme series are curently mantaned n the Company's market database
Time series are generally avalable for all assets but where a complete times senes (e 520
business days) cannot be found for a specific underlying, the VaR model will follow a ‘proxy logic’
to map the exposure to an appropriate time seres (for example, this would be the case for an
option on a recently issued stock) The level of proxying taking place in the VaR model 1s
carefully monitored through intemal nsk management processes and there 1s a continual effort to
source new times senes to use in the VaR calculation

VaR Backtesting

The performance of the company's VaR model 1s constantly montored to ensure that it remans
fit for purpose The man approach for valdatng VaR 1s to compare i-day P&L with the
corresponding VaR estimate  With a 99% VaR measure, one expects 2-3 exceptions (1e 10ss IS
larger than VaR} a year We backiest the VaR model at a Company level as well as at a
number of lower levels, and the backtesting results are reviewed on a monthly basis by the
Company’'s nsk management function

Limitations and Advantages of VaR

The man advantage of VaR as a nsk measure s that it 1s able to aggregate nsk from different
asset classes (n contrast with other nsk measures sensitivities that cannot be easly aggregated
drectly) The nsk from different divsions of the Company can therefore easily be compared and
aggregated using VaR

As a nsk measure, howsver, VaR has well documented Imitations One of the man
disadvantages with VaR s that it 15 a backward looking nsk measure Using histoncal market
moves to infer future P&L for a firm means that we assume thai only events that have actually
happened are relevant to analyse the nsk of a portfolio

Moreover, VaR only grves an estimate of the loss at a stated {99 percentle (e N one out of
100 days the loss will be greater than 1d VaR), but not what magnitude of loss that can take
place whenever the loss does exceed VaR

vaR as a nsk measure 1s most appropriate for lquid markets and may understate the financial
mpact of severe events for which there 1s no histoncal precedent of where market hquidity may
not be reliable In particular, historical correlatons can break down in extreme markets leading to
unexpected relative market moves This may make positions that off-set each other in VaR
modeling move in the same drrection thus Increase losses
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19  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)
Market Risk (continued)
A Market Risk — Trading {continued)

Nomura 15 aware of the Imitatien of the Company's VaR model and uses VaR only as one
component of a diverse nsk management process  Other metrics to supplement VaR nclude
stress testing and sensitivity analysis

The table below llustrates, by majer nsk category, the VaR dunng the financial years ended
31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 It shows the highest, lowest and average VaR dunng the
financial year

Min Max

Average VaR MinVaR MaxVaR Average VaR VaR VaR

2013 2013 2013 212 2012 2012

$'000 £'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'C00

Equity VaR 9,028 2,322 102,896 10,227 4,926 20,861

Securitised Products VaR 1,592 - 3,386 1,954 - 6,512

Credit VaR 29,079 5,661 62,286 47,132 19811 67,082

Interest Rates VaR 19,888 10,141 52,758 11,611 7,720 20,125

Inflabion VaR 1,309 531 2,834 766 245 2,251

FX VaR 13,834 9,197 21.864 11,257 7,638 17,324

Commodity VaR 78 1 243 52 - 1,786
Dversification (32,185) {39,202)

Total 42,623 17,443 69,088 44,004 17,408 66,910

The total average, minimum and maximum VaR values are shown over the full annual perncd

In practice, the actual trading results wil differ from the VaR calculaton and, in partcular, the
calculaton does not prowvide a meaningful indication of profits and losses In stressed market
conditions The effectiveness of VaR can be assessed by a companson of actual daly trading
gans/losses with the estimated VaR, a process known as back testing

59




NOMURA INTERNATIONAL PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2013 (CONTINUED})

19.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)
Market Risk (continued)
A Market Risk - Trading (continued)

Non-VaR methodology and assumptions
Some of the Company's private equiy assets are not included within the VaR calculations shown
above

The investrment n Nomura Invesiments (AH) Limited was disposed of dunng the year No
sensitivity analysis has been performed for the year ended 31 March 2013

B. Market Risk — Non-Trading

Interest rate nsk

tnterest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash
flows or the far values of financial mstruments The Board has establshed lmits on the interest
rate gaps for stipulated penods Positions are monitored on a daly basis and hedging strateges
are used to ensure postions are mantaned within the established mits

Currency risk

Currency nsk 1s the nsk that the value of a financial instrument wil fluctuate due to changes n
foreign exchange rates Dunng the course of the Treasury department’s financing activities there
15 often a need to swap surplus flows N cne currency nte another currency, a process achieved
using currency swap transactions The Company 1s exposed to currency nsk in respect of certain
foreign currency denominated loans This exposure 1s managed on a portfolo basis  The Board
has set Imits on postions by currency Positions are monitored on a daly basis and hedging
strateqies are used to ensure positions are maintained within established hmits  Hedge accounting
IS not applied

In the cases of both interest rate and currency nsk the Company does not believe, after taking

account of the portfolo management and hedging strategies n place, that there 18 a materal
exposure to non-trading market risk On this basis no sensitivity analysis 1s presented
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED}
Credit Risk
Credit Risk Management

Credit nsk refers to the potential loss n the value of a transaction because of a counterparty or
issuer faling to perform its contractual commitment This type of nsk 1S reduced through
dversification, effective credit analysis of counterparties, enforcement of credit limits by country and
by counterparty, management of credt exposure through netting arrangements, and the
maintenance of adequate collateral to secure the commitments of counterparties Credit denvatives
are also used to reduce exposure or to hedge credit nsk with respect to issuers

The Company's Credit Risk Management Department) 1s responsible for managing credit nsks to
which the Company 1S exposed

Principal investment decisions are taken by senior management under advice from the credit
function The Company’s Investment Evaluation and Credit Department undertakes due diligence
for potential principal Investments, current principal Ivestments and underwnting positions that are
being considered

Counterparty exposure 1s managed through a process of imit setting and exception reporting with
credit policy settng the maximum exposure and tenor based on nternal credit ratng The
Company uses a scale of internal ratngs that mirror the credit-rating agencies’ rating scales
Changes to credit policy need to be approved by the board, as do all credt actions for the
month Credit Policy 15 set at a Global level for the Nomura Group

Denvative exposure 1S calculated using a statistical methodology and trades are booked against
credit ines Credit denvatives exposure 15 calculated taking into account the credit qualty of the
undertying ssue and the counterparty The Company trades usng market convention
documentation and, where appropnate, credit enhancements will be added to the documentation

As descnbed above, the Company enters into nettng arrangements 1o mitigate #s exposure to
crecht loss The mpact of offsetting financial assets and financial habities which are subject to
netiing agreements 1s not reflected in the balance sheet

Credit Risk Exposure

The Company's maxmum exposure to credit nsk at the balance sheet date 1s disclosed below,
based on the carrying amount of the financial assets the Company believes 18 subject to credit
nsk, without taking account of any collateral held or any other credit enhancements Certan off
balance sheet mnstruments which expose the Company to a nsk of loss due to default by the
parties underlying these contracts are also disclosed Collateral 1s held on financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated at far value through profit and loss, collateral pad for
secunties purchased under agreements to resell and collateral pad for secuntes borrowed The
exercise of collateral will lead to a significant reduction in the potential loss in the value of the
corresponding financial asset in the event of a counterparty or issuer faling to perform its
contractual commitment
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Credit Risk Exposure (continued)

Maximum Maxiymum

Exposure to Exposure to

Credit Risk Credit Risk

2013 2012

$m $m

Avallable-for-sale debt investments 2 5

Financial assets held for trading 222,480 210,509
Financial assets designated at far value

through profit and loss 23,170 24,008
Collateral paid for secunties purchased

under agreements to resell 136,688 128,060

Collateral pad for securities borrowed 16,427 31,245

Other dsbtors 14,995 17,5638

Investments - time deposits 1,653 633

Cash at bank and n hand 5,972 4,665

421,387 417,663

Commitments to extend crecht 1,208 1,904

Other commitments 4 6

1,212 1,810

Total exposure to credit nsk 422,599 419,573

Cther credit enhancemenis include netting agreements which prowde protection to reduce the
nsks of counterparty default and, in some cases offset the Company's exposure with the same
counterparty, which provides a more meaningful presentation of balance sheet credit exposure
Also included n this balance are crecit dervatves and other financial guarantee products which
are used to hedge the Company's exposure to credit nsk
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Credit Risk Exposure {continued)
The credit quality of financial assets and off balance sheet commitments which are subject to

credit nsk, that are netther past due nor impared, 1s summansed below The credt ratings are
determined by the Company's intemally determined public rating agency equivalents

Maxymum Exposure Maximum Exposure to

to Credit Risk Credit Risk
2013 2012
$m $m
Credit Rating

AAA 13,671 18,269
AA 35,972 25,509
A 100,019 111,672
BBB 200,743 191,783
Non-Investment grade 55,020 53,765
Unrated 15,962 16,7685

Total exposure to credit nsk by
credit rating 421,387 417,664

The unrated balance represents the pool of counterpartes which indwdually do not generate
matenal credit nsk for the Company and which do not require rating under the Company's credit
management policies This pool 1s highly diversified, subject to hmits, and monitored on a regular
basis

Included N the non-investment grade exposure 1s the far value of vanous credit dernvative
contracts with monolne insurers These postions were entered into by the structured credit
trading business of Global Markets n Europe and are classified as financal assets held for
tradng The Company 1s currently negotiating with the insurers to settle the outstanding amounts

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Concentrations of credt nsk may arnse from trading, secunties financing transactions and
underwnting actvities, and may be mpacted by changes i poltical or economic factors
Nomura's significant single concentrations of credit nsk were with strongly rated credit institutions
n the US and Europe These concentrations generally anse from taking trading securities
positions and may include secunties pledged as collateral

The Company 1s exposed to signiicant counterparty credit nsk from fellow Nomura Group

undertakings The maximum credit exposure to fellow Nomura Group undertakings 1s $163 bikon
(2012 $160 billon) and 1s rated using the Nomura Group's credt rating of BBB (2012 ‘BBB)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Credit Risk {continued)

Amounts past due but not impaired

Amounts which are past due but not mmpared are those amounts which the Company believes
are past due but stll recoverable or which are sufficiently collateralised such that the farr value of

the collateral pledged 15 sufficient to offset the amount of the outstanding obligation

An ageing analysis of amounts past due but not impared 1s provided in the table below

Less than 91 days

2013 2012

$000 $'000

Other debtors 789,256 891,439
Total 789,256 891,439

Impaired financial assets

The Company assesses whether there 1s any objective evidence that a financial asset 15 impared
at each balance sheet date An mparment loss 1s incurred only if there 18 objective ewidence of
imparrment as a result of one or more events that cccurred after the inital recognition of the
asset, the loss event has an impact on estmated future cash flows, after taking ntoe account any
collateral held, and if the impact of that loss can be relably estmated

The amount charged to profit and loss for assets subject to imparment losses during the penod
15 $NIl (2012 $NIl)

As at 31 March 2013 the cumulatve wnparment loss on avalable-for-sale investments was SNl
{2012 $NI)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk Management

The company defines lquidity nsk as the potential inability to meet financial obligations as they
become due This nsk could anse from vanous scenanos and could be due both to Nomura-
specfic and market-wide events Liquidity nsk management policy 15 based on the board
approved hquidity nsk appetite Our pnmary objective for liqudity nsk management 1S 10 ensure
continuous liquidity across market cycles and periods of market stress, and to ensure that all
funding requirements and unsecured debt obfigations that fall due withn one year can be met
without any rellance on additional unsecured funding or forced liquidation of assets

The frms MCO (Maximum Cumulatve outflow) mode! quantifies the amount of liquidity required to
survive the approved stress scenarios, the Company manages lquidity nsk on a self-sufficiency
basis and controls ligquidity usage via an unsecured funding lmit framework To ensure a readily
avalable source of lqudity to meet the modeled liquidity requirements, we maintan a liquidity
portfolio in the form of highly liquid, unencumbered securities that may be sold or pledged to
provide liguidity “The Liquidity pool

The Company as a UK regulated entity is fully compliant with the UK PRA prescrbed hquidity
requirements

65




NOMURA INTERNATIONAL PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2013 (CONTINUED)

19

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Liguidity Risk (continued)
Contractual Maturity Table

The table below shows the Company's financial labilities by contractual matunty remaning, taking
nto account early redemption features Derwvative contracts and other financial instruments
contaned withn the Company's trading portfolo and other instruments contaning embedded
derivatives (including structured note 1ssuances and other financial liabilities designated at far value)
are presented at ther far values ANl other amounts represent undiscounted cash flows payable by
the Company arsing from its financial liabiites Perpetual cashflows are shown for a penod of ten
years Denvatives are disclosed at far value on demand with the exception of gross settled
dervatives, which are shown by contractual matunty remaning Fnancial labilties designated at far
value are cisclosed based on ther earlest redemption date This presentation is considered to
reflect the liquicity nsk ansing from the Company's financial habilities and s consistent with how

this nsk 1s managed by the Company

Later
On Lessthan -9 91 days than 5
demand 30 days days —1vyear 1-5years ears Total
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
$m Sm $m $m Sm $m $m
Financial habiites held-for-
trading 201,566 3,076 2,497 2,702 1,810 96 211,747
Financial labilities
designated at far value 798 5,735 742 1,308 1,592 413 10,586
Collateral received for
secunties sold under
agreements to repurchase 5,735 88,873 36,962 4,510 1,297 - 137,377
Collateral recewved for
securties loaned 8,573 557 545 228 - - 9,903
Other Creditors 30,871 1,722 4,790 2,855 - - 40,238
Creditors (amounts falling
due after more than one
year) - - - - 1,600 4,854 6,454
247 541 99,963 45,536 11,603 6,299 5,363 416,305
Other commitments - - - 329 617 262 1,208
Standby letters of credit
and other guarantees - - - - - 4 4
- - - 329 617 266 1,212
Total exposure to
ligudity nsk 247,541 99,963 45,536 11,832 6,916 5,629 417,517
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Liquichty Risk (continued)

Contractual Maturity Table

Less Later
On than 30 31-90 91 days than 5
demand days days =~1year 1-S5years years TJotal
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
Sm $m $m Sm $m Sm $m
Financial llabilties held-for-
trading 190,628 3,055 2,126 2,016 415 30 198,270
Financial habilities
designated at far value 2,299 3,153 751 1,316 7,727 1,248 16,494
Collateral recewved for
securities sold  under
agreements to repurchase 34,231 75,115 17,517 7.998 - - 134,861
Collateral received for
secunties loaned 21,919 768 - - - - 22,687
Other creditors 18,650 2,875 532 6,516 - - 28,573
Creditors (amounts faling
due after more than one
year) - - - - 8,051 4,175 12,226
267,727 84,066 20,926 17,846 16,193 5,453 413,111
Other commitments - - - 347 1,008 549 1,804

Standoy lstters of credit

and other guarantees - - - - - 6 6
- - - 347 1,008 5565 1,910

Total exposure to

hquidity nsk 267,727 B4966 20,926 18,193 17,201 6,008 415,021
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Liquidity Risk (continued)
Contractual Maturity Table
The table below shows the maturty profile of the Company's financial assets The analysis into

matunty groupings 1s based on the remaining penod to the contractual matunty date or, If earher,
the expected date the assets will be realised

Less Later
On than30 31-90 91days 1-5 than 5
demand days days -1year years years Total
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
Sm Sm $m m $m sm $m
Cash at bank and
n hand 5872 - - - - - 5,972
Avaitable-for-sale
Investments 2 - - - - - 2
Financial assets
held for trading 211,905 3,590 2,342 2,724 1,828 91 222,480
Financial assets
designated at fair
value 4,210 8,906 3,197 6,340 244 273 23,170
Collateral pad for
securities
purchased under
agreement to
resell 2,608 84,258 45,458 818 3,646 - 136,688
Collateral pad for
securnties
borrowed 10,353 5,055 423 596 - - 16,427
Other debtors 13,482 789 - - - - 14,271
Investments -
time deposits 1,303 - - 3 326 21 1,653
Total exposure to
hquidity nisk 249,735 102,588 51,420 10,481 6,044 385 420,663
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Liguidity Risk {continued}

Contractual Maturity Table

Less Later
On than 30 31-90 91 days than 5
demand days days -—-1year 1-5years years Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
$m Sm Sm Sm sSm $m Sm
Cash at bank and
n hand 4,665 - - - - - 4,665
Avallable-for-sale
Investments 5 - - - - - 5
Financial assets
held for trading 203,585 2,684 1,805 2,032 395 28 210,509
Financial assets
designated at far
value 3,450 5,543 572 2,252 10,680 1,511 24,008
Collateral paid for
secunties
purchased under
agreement to
resell 8,321 80,614 25,172 10,136 4,810 7 128,080
Collateral paid for
secunties
borrowed 27,398 3,208 638 - - - 31,245
Cther debtors 15,657 891 - - - - 16,548
Investments -
time deposits 8633 - - - - - 633
Total exposure to
hquidity nsk 263,605 92940 28,187 14,420 15,885 1,546 416,673
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Operational Risk

The Company defines operational nsk as the rnsk of loss resulting from nadequate or faled
internal processes, people and systems or from external events This definhon 18 based on the
standard Basel definition and excludes sirategic nsk (the nsk of loss as a result of poor strategic
business decisions), but includes the nsk of breach of legal and regulatory requirements, and the
nsk of damage to Nomura’s reputaton If caused by an operational nsk As defined by the
“Regulations for System Risk Management”, System Risk 15 considered to be a component of
operational nsk as defined above

The Company uses the Nomura Group's Operational Risk framework for the management of the
Company's operational nsk and this 1s outined in the Global Operatonal Risk Management
Mirimum Standards and Policy of the Nomura Group

The Operational Risk Management Framework consists of the following core preducts and
services

Operational Risk Event Reporting — a process for the wdentficatron, reporting and management of
operatonal nsk events which could have an impact on the Nomura Group

Risk and Control Self Assessment (*“RCSA”) - a pernodic self assessment of rsks and control
effectiveness Including any specific remediation
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Operational Risk {continued)

Key Risk Indicators (“KRIs") — metncs used to montor and manage the business exposure to nsk
Scenano analysis -~ a process to ideniify low frequency and high seventy events These core
components are used 1o wdentfy the operational nisk profile within the Company and ensure this 1s
n accordance with the rsk appetiie set by the Nomura Group Integrated Risk Management
Committee on behalf of the Nomura Group Board

Fair values of financial assets and financial habiities

All financial instruments held or 1ssued for trading purposes are carmed in the financial statements
at far value which 1s deiermined using market values, option pncing models or by discounting
expected future cash flows at prevaling interest rates

The carrying value of financial mstruments not measured at far value 15 a reasonable
approximation of far value for the maonty of these holdings due to the short-term nature of these
financial assets and labilities

Financial instruments valued using unobservable market data

Certain financial assets and labilites are valued using valuaton techniques which rely on
parameters which are not observable in the market due to an absence of equivalent, current,
market transactions or observable market data

These valuation techmniques are based on assumptions As a result, the far value calculated using
these valuation technigues will change if the underlying assumptons change The potential impact
of using reasonably possible altemative assumptions to value these financial instruments at the
balance sheet date i1s plus and/or minus $46,142,867 (2012 $47,493,804)

Where the use of valuation techniques with significant unobservable parameters generates a gain
or loss at nception, this i1s deferred over the ife of the contract, untl the parameters become
observable or the instrument 15 terminated Changes In far value after nception are recognised in
the ncome statement The total far value change recognised m profit or loss attnbutable to these
financial nstruments at balance sheet date 15 a loss of $20,176,346 (2012 loss of $56,795,000)

The amounts not recognised durng the year relating to the difference between the transaction
pnce and the far value determined using a valuation technique with unobservable parameters 1S
shown in the table below

2013 2012
$'000 $'000
As at 1 Apnl 26,381 34,669
New transactions 9,689 2,007
Redemptions and terminations {21,085) (10,295)
As at 31 March 14,985 26,381
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20.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Gains and losses on-financial assets and financial habilities held or1ssued for trading

The net gain/ {loss} from trading 1n financial assets and financial liabilities shown in the profit
and loss account includes the following

2013 2012
$m $m
Bond and equity dervatives (955) (1,282)
Convertible bonds (301} (358)
Equities (147) 3,943
Warrants 354 441
Government bonds (2,019) 813
Bank and corporate bonds 228 130
Interest rate denvatives 6B71) 354
Currency dervatives 1,147 (222)
Credit dervatives 3,446 {868)
1,082 2,751

The information provided n the table above 18 shown on a pure product split basis, with no
matching of the gains and losses on dervative contracts being offset aganst those on the
underlying position A significant amount of trading takes place on a strategy basis across a
range of instruments and 15 managed accordingily

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following methods and assumptions have been applied n determining the far values of
financial instruments

a)

b)

c)

The farr value of oans and recewvables and other habities due within 12 monihs are
assumed to approximate to thewr carrying values

Financial assets classified as avalable for sale are measured at far value by reference
to quoted market pnces when avalable If quoted market pnces are not avalable,
then far values are estimated using a valuation model

Financial assets and llabiites designated at far value through profit and loss and
derivatves are measured at far value by reference to quoted market pnces when
avalable Such models are based wherever possible on assumptions supported by
observable market pnces or rates These valuation techniques are based on
assumptions As a result, the far value calculated using these valuation technigues will
change if the underlying assumpticns change The potential impact of using reasonably
possible altematve assumptions to value these financial instruments has not been
disclosed as, due to the Bank’s transfer of risks to other Nomura Group companies, it
1s not deemed significant
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Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 - quoted pnces i actve markets for the same instrument (e without modification or
repackaging}

Level 2 - quoted prices In active markets for similar assets or habilties or other valuation
techniques for which all significant nputs are based on observable market data

Level 3 - valuation techmigues for which any signficant input 1S not based on observable market
cdata

The following table presents information about the Company's financial assets and financial
labities measured at far value within the far value hierarchy, based on the transparency of
nputs Into the valuation techrigues used by the Company to determine such far values
Financial assets and financial labilities are classified 1n ther entrrety based on the lowest level of
nput that 18 significant to the far value measurement of the financial instrument

As at 31 March 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$000 $000 $'000 $000
Financial Assets
- Equities 4,531,810 2,733,298 232,812 7,497,921
- Debt secunties and loans 18,194,957 16,413,553 228,618 34,837,128
- Dernvatives 2,813,031 171,876,742 5,457,175 180,146,948
Designated at far value through
profit and loss - 23,169,919 - 23,169,219
25,639,798 214,183,513 5,918,605 245,651,916
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Liabilities
- Equities (7,471,268} (924,989) 2,788) (8,399,045)
- Debt secunties and loans {13,680,013) (9,941,756) - {23,621,769)
- Denvatives {3,484,315)  {171,048,895) ({5,182,925) (179,726,135)
Desgnated at far value through
profit and loss (857,035) {9,721,004) (7,942) (10,585,981}
(25,502,631}  (191,636,644) (5,193,655) (222,332,830)
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As at 31 March 2012

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$'000 $°000 $'000 $000
Financial Assets
- Equities 2,697,984 6,832,147 229,468 9,659,599
- Debt secunties and loans 14,616,492 19,450,098 245,470 34,312,060
- Derivatives 453,832 152,238,541 13,848,151 166,541,524
Designated at far value through
profit and loss - 23,722,406 285,739 24,008,145

17,668,308 202,243,192 14,608,828 234,521,328

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000

Financial Liabilities

- Equities {4,986,557) {4,208,064) - (9,194,621}

- Debt secunties and loans {11,717,981) (10,609,173) - (22,327,154)

- Derwvatives (1,156,310) {153,123,839) (12,467,437) (166,747,5806)
Designated at far value through
profit and loss (968,969) (15,282,572) (240,614) {16,492,155)

(18,829,817) (183,223,648 (12,708,051) (214,761.516)

Level 3 financial assets and financial habilities

level 3 financial assets and financial labilties include mstruments whose valuations are
signficantly dependent on parameters which are unobservable in the market Financial
nstruments are categonsed i accordance with ther lowest level significant nput As a result, a
denvative valued using a combinaton of level 1, level 2 and level 3 parameters would be
classified n leve! 3 in its entrety, if its value 15 significantly affected by at least one significant
unobservable parameter

These financial mstruments are often hedged with instruments within level 1 or level 2 of the far
value hierarchy and the gans or losses below do not reflect the offsetting gains or losses for
these hedgng instruments Level 3 mstruments are also measured usng bolh observable and
unobservable nputs Far value changes presented below, therefore, reflect realised and
unrealised gains and losses resulting from movements N both obserable and unobservable
parameters
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The following table presents information about financial assets and labilities measured at far
value on a recurnng basis for which the Company has utiised level 3 inputs to determine far

value

At 1 Apnl Total gains Purchase Sales Settlements Net At 31 March Unrealised
2012 {losses) in P&L transfers in/ 2013 Total gans
{out of) level (losses) in P&L
3
! Financial Assets
Financial assets held
for trading
- Equities 229,468 (26,856} 234,147 {22,880) - {181,067} 232,812 {57.873)
- Debt secunties and 245,470 6,681 126,970 (156.515) - 8,012 228,618 {31,057)
loans
- Denvatves 13,849,151 1,975,111 - (5,196,611} (5,170.476) 5,457,175 1,662,930
Financial assets
designated far value
through profit and loss
-Loans and
‘ recevables 285,739 {1,145) 6596 (256,066} (29,224) - 1,699
14,609,828 1,953,731 361,813 (435,461) (5,196,611} (5,374,755 5,918,605 1,575,699
At 1 Apnl Total gans Purchase Sales Settlements Net At 31 March Unrealised
2012 {losses) in P&L transfers in/ 2013 Total gains
(out of) lavel (losses) in P&L
3
Financial Liabilities
Financial habiities held
for trading
- Equriies (489) 346 (2.570) (75) {2,788) (2,225}
- Debt securntes and
loans - - - - - - -
- Denvaives (12,467 ,437) (1 453,979) - 3238,018 5,500,473 {5,182,925) (1,129,118}
Financial habimes
designated far value
through profit and loss
-Loans and
recevables {240,614} - (7,942 240,614 - - {7,942) -
(12,708 051} (1,454,468 {7 596) 238,044 238,018 5,500,398 (5,193,655) 1,131,341}

Total gans and losses on financial assets mncluded in the above table are included in ‘Trading

profit’ n the profit and loss account
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Transfers between level 1 and 2

The following table shows transfers between level 1 and level 2 of the far value hwerarchy for

financial assets and labiities which are recorded at farr value

As at 31 March 2013

Financial Assets

Financial assets held for trading
- Equities
- Debt Securties

Financial Liabilities

Financial habilities held for trading
- Equities
- Debt Secunties

As at 31 March 2012

Financial Assets

Financial assets held for trading
- Eguities
- Debt Securties

Financial Liabilties

Financial hatities held for trading
- Equities
- Debt Secunties
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Transfers from Transfers from
level 1 to level level 2 to level 1
$'000 $000

43,680 2,730,145

117,156 13,5583

160,836 2,743,698
Transfers from Transfers from
level 1 to level 2 level 2 to level 1
$000 $'000

(22,046) (2,809,014)
(12,898) -
(34,944) (2,809,014}

Transfers from

Transfers from

level 1 to level 2 level 2 to level 1
$'0600 $'000

3,758,139 96,585

- 117,702

3,758,139 214,287

Tr s from Transfers from
level level 2 evel 2 t vel 1
$'000 $'000
(3,347,560} {681,277)

- {215,016)

(3,347,560} (896,293)
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICY

The objectives of the Company's capital management polcies are to ensure that the Company
complies with externally imposed capital requrements and to seek to enhance sharsholder value
by capturing business opportunities as they develop To achieve these goals, sufficient capial 1s
maintained to support the Company's business and to withstand losses due to extreme market
movements

The Company reviews the appropriate level of capital sufficiency, with semor management
responsible for mplementing and enforcing capttal poficies The determination of balance sheet size
and level of capital take into consideration regulatory regurements, economic nsks inherent m its
business and mantenance of a debt rating appropriate to a global financial institution  The
allocation of available capial resource across the business 1 then based upon factors such as
return on capital and regulatory requirements

The Company 1s subject to and has complied with the regulatory requirements imposed by the
Prudential Regulation Authonty {"PRA”) under the Basel Il framework

No changes were made in the objectives, palicies or processes for managing capial dunng the
year

Regulatory Capital

Regulatory guidelines developed by the Basel Committee and European Umion Directives, as
implemented by the PRA for supervisory purposes define three 'Tiers' of capital resources Tier 1
capital 1s the highest tier and consists of, inter ala, ordinary share captal, reserves and retained
earmngs  Tier 2 includes perpetual and long-term subordinated debt  Tiers 1 and 2 capital can
be used to support both trading and non-trading actmty for market and counterparty nsks  Tier 3
capital comprises short-term subordinated debt and current year trading book profit/ {loss) The
use of Tier 3 capital s resincted to market nsk on trading actmbies only and s not eligible to
support credit nsk, counterparty nsk, operational nsk and the PRA's minmum base capial
requirement

2013 2012

$'000 $°000
Tier 1 capital 4,124,858 3,346,567
Tier 2 capital 3,686,301 3,272,3
Tier 1 & 2 capital 7,811,159 6,618,858
Tier 3 capial 1,788,699 4,204,040
Total deductions from capital {38,310) (125,557}
Total capital resources 9,561,548 10,697 441
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OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Company was committed to making the following payments dunng the next year in respect
of operating leases expinng

2013 2013 2012 2012

Buildings Other Buldings Qther

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Within one year 357 417 - 11
Within two to five years 5,330 1,239 6,281 1,301
After five years 79,026 - 77,497 7

84,713 1,656 83,778 1,319

EMPLOYEES

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Company dunng the year and ther
location were as follows

Year ed Year ended

31 March 2013 31 March 20
Number Number
United Kingdom 2,513 2,988
Middle East 34 51
Spain 36 44
Other Europe 47 7
Others - 5
2,630 3,095

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
$'000 $'000
Salanes, allowances and taxable benefits 5,440 6,422
Company contributions to pension 103 92
Bonuses 2914 3,894
Compensation for loss of office 3,350 260
11,807 10,668

The number of Directors who exercised share options during the year was three {2012 Ni)

The number of Directors entitled to receive shares under a long-term incentve plan dunng the
year was seven (2012 — N

The highest pad Director receved emoluments of $1,414,220 (2012 $1,029,184) and
Company contributions to pension of $NiIl (2012 SNl
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The ultimate holding company, Nomura Holdings, Inc, has issued two types of share option
schemes - stock option plan A and stock option plan B

For both plans the share options have vanable vesting penods dunng which the options may not
be exercised

The exercise price of stock option plan A will be determined by reference to the market pnce of
the ulbmate heolding company’s common stock, whilst that of stock option plan B will be 1¥ per
share

For both stock option plans, these stock options are exercisable durng a certan pernod from the
vesting date (five years at maximum), which 1S {0 be decided by the ultmate holding company's
Executive Management Board

The following table for stock option plan A lists the inputs to the model used for the year ended
31 March 2013

Date of grant of Histoncal Risk-free Expected Iife of Share Pnce at
share options Dividend yield volatility interest rate options Grant Date
% % % Years ¥
25-Jul-05 330 42 44 087 7 1,335
14-Ju-06 308 36 48 1 68 7 2,020
01-Aug-07 304 3385 1 85 7 2,210
05-Aug-08 378 3273 143 7 1,493

The following table for stock option plan A lsts the inputs to the model used for the year ended
31 March 2012

Date of grant of Histoncal Risk-free Expected life of Share Pnice at
share options Dividend yield volatility nterest rate options Grant Date
% % % Years ¥
16-Aug-04 253 43 51 121 7 1,453
25-Jul-05 330 42 44 087 7 1,335
14-Jul-06 308 36 48 168 [+] 2,020
01-Aug-07 304 3385 165 5 2,210
05-Aug-08 378 3273 143 8 1,493

Under stock option plan B, the share price as at the grant date has been used as an esimate
for the farr value at grant date

For both stock opton plans it has been assumad that all optons will vest gwven that there s
msignificant histoncal experience avalable to provide a reliable estimate

The expense recogmsed for employee services recewved dunng the year was $113,626,000 (2012
$188,943,000)
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
NSU and CSU Awards

NSUs and CSUs are cash-settled awards lnked to the price of the Company's common stock
which have graded vesting over three years from grant date NSUs vest annually over three years
while CSUs vest quarterly over three years NSUs replicate the key features of SAR Plan B
awards but are settled in cash rather than the Company’s common stock CSUs are similar to
NSUs but exposure of the employee to movements In the price of the Company’s common stock
IS subject to a cap and floor The far value of NSUs and CSUs are determined using the
average closing NHI share pnce over the five tradng days up to and including the vesting date

For NSU and CSU awards the expense recognised for employee services received dunng the year
was $175,851,401 (2012 $188,143,032)

Other Awards

In addition to the stock-based compensation awards descnbed above, Nomura also grants NIUs
to certan senior management and employees NIUs are cash-seftled awards linked to a world
stock index quoted by Morgan Stanley Capital International which have graded vesting over three
years from grant date NIUs vest quarterly over three years The farr value of NIUs i1s determined
using the average closing price of the Index dunng the five tradng days up to and including the
vesting date

For NIU awards the expense recognised for employee services recewved during the year was
$41,510,384 (2012 $40,256,529)

The following iable idlustrates the number and weighted average exercise price of the following
groups of share options

Share Number of share options Weighted
Option Plan average
exercise
pnce

¥

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year A 300 232

B 638,380 1
NSU 23,822,555
Ccsu 16,590,104
NIU 17,395,354

58,446,693

Granted during the year A - -

B 313,181 1
NSU 9,564,926
Csu 40,309,072
NIU 14,728,426

64,915,605
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25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Forfeited dunng the year

Exercised during the year

Expired dunng the year

Qutstanding at the end of the year

Exercisable at the end of the year

81

Share
Option Plan

NSU
csu
NIV

NSU
csu
NIV

NSU
csu
NiU

NSU
csu
NIU

>

Number of share options

(31,443)
(1,305,227)
(1,992,078}

(863,626)

(269,222)
(15,103,037)
(14,217,306)
{10,059,263)

(60)
(1.423)

240
649473
16,979,217
40,689,792
21,200,891

(4,192,374)

(39,648,828)

(1,483)

79,519,613

Weighted
average
exercise

price
¥
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2013 there were capital commitments of $17,763,127 relating to assets in the
course of construction (2012 $32,595,352)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Profit and loss account

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 8 from disclosing related party
transactions with other entities included i the consohdated financial statements of Nomura
Holdings, Inc

As part of the Company’s Merchant Banking operations, financial arrangements are made with
certain companes for the purpose of holding investments As a result of these arrangements,
these companies become related parties As at 31 March 2013 and as at 31 March 2012
aggregate amounts due frem such related parhes of $420,539 and $448,629 respectively had
been fully provided for

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
Itahan Tax Dispute

On 25 January 2008, the Company was served with a Tax Notice issued by the Tax Authorities
In Pescara, Italy alleging breaches by the Company of the UK - Italy Doubte Taxation Treaty of
19098 The alleged breaches relate to payments to the Company of tax credits on dividends on
itatian shares The Tax Notice not only denies certain payments to which the Company clams to
be entitled but 15 also seeking rembursement of €33 8 millon, plus nterest, already refunded On
25 March 2008, the Company lodged an appeal aganst the Tex Notice rejecting the ltahan Tax
Authorities' demands for rembursement and advancing the Company's clam for further refunds

The matter went to a hearng n March 2009 and in November 2009 a decision was issued by
First Instance Pescara Tax Court in favour of the ltalan Tax Authonties The Company lodged an
appeal of this decision and in March 2012 a second decision was issued by the Second Instance
Pescara Tax Court in favour of the ltalan Tax Authonties As s allowed under ltalan tax
procedure, n September 2012 the Company receved a demand for payment from the Italan Tax
Authonties n the amount of €37 5 milion which comprised the onginal refunded amount, interest
and collection fees Payment of this amount was made on 26 October 2012 Payment does not
undermine the Company's arguments in the dispute and the Company intends to contnue to
vigorously challenge the second decision through a further appeal to the Supreme Court in Rome
In order to seek full rembursement of this amount plus further iterest Ultmately the Company
expects that its appeal will preval The specfied amount pad 1s the Company’s current estimate
of the maximum reasonably possible loss from this matter
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fairfield Claims

The Company 1s a defendant n two actions seeking recovery of payments aflegedly made to the
Company by Farrfield Sentry Ltd and Farfield Sigma Ltd ({collectively, the “Fairfield Funds”) The
Farfield Funds, now in kquidation, were feeder funds to Bernard L Madoff Investment Secunties
LLC (“BLMIS"} BLMIS s itself now In lqudation n the US pursuant to the Securties Investor
Protecton Act The first clam was brought by the lquidators of the Farfield Funds it was filed
on 5 October 2010 n the Supreme Court of the State of New York, but was subsequently
transferred to the US Bankruptcy Court It looks Iikely that the clam will be transferred back to
the New York Supreme Court The ciam is one of many simiar clams that have been brought
aganst a number of investors The second claim was brought by the Trustee for the liquidation of
BLMIS {the “Madoff Trustee') The Company was added as a defendant on 6 June 2012 when
the Madoff Trustee fled an amended complant in the US Bankruptcy Court Rulngs on a number
of prelminary 1ssues are expected to be handed down in spring/summer 2013 by the US Distnct
Court, which agreed to hear certan prelimmnary 1ssues Again, this clam 1s one of many clams
beng brought aganst a range of investors Both clams are at a prelmmary stage The amount
clamed n each case s approxmately US$35 milicn plus interest The Company intends to
vigorously contest the proceedings The Company does not believe that t will face the prospect
of double recovery of the sums in question The Company's current estmate of the maximum
reasonably possible loss from this matter 1s US$35 million

Harley Clarm

On 6 OQctober 2011, the Madoff Trustee filed an adversary proceeding aganst the Company In
the US Bankruptcy Court for the recovery of redemption payments allegedly made by the Harley
fund to the Company The basis of the clam I1s that the redemptions in question were and
continue to be “Customer Property” within the meaning of the Secunties Investor Protection Act
and are therefore avodable and recoverable under the US Bankruptcy Code and New York
Debtor and Credtor law The Harey fund, now in liqudation, was a feeder fund to BLMIS The
clam s for approxmately US$215 millon plus interest The Company, aleng with many other
similarly situated defendants, filed a motion seeking to have the proceedings heard in the us
Distnct Court rather than the US Bankruptcy Court, which the US District Court granted Rulings
on a number of preliminary 1Issues are expected to be handed down in spring/summer 2013 The
Company Intends to wvigorously contest the proceedings The specified amount clamed 1s the
Company’s current estimate of the maximumn reasonably possible loss from this matter

Region of Calabna

The Region of Calabna (the “Region”) has commenced cml proceedings aganst a number of
financial services firms including the Company N the local Calabrian court The Regon’s clam
aganst the Company relates to denvative transactions entered into by the Region and purports to
be for the sum of €32 miion The Company has submitted a full defence to the clam A hearing
on preliminary 1ssues (including junsdiction) was currently scheduled for 23 Apnl 2013 however that
hearng has now been adjourned to 19 November 2013
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
Collateral dispute

On March 1, 2011, formal proceedings were commenced in the Commercial Court of the Canton
of Zunch (the “Court”) against Tarquin Limited {"Tarquin®),a special purpose company established
at the request of the Company, in which PT Bank Mutiara Tbk ("Bank Mutiara”) has challenged
Tarquin’s nghts over US$155 millon previously on deposit N a bank account held with Dresdner
Bank [Schweiz) (“Dresdner’) over which Tarquin has a securty mnterest pursuant to a lpan facility
These funds are now deposited with the Cantonal Bank of Zunch by order of the Swiss Court,
following a request by Dresdner for the Court to decide who should receve the funds As part
of this process the Swiss Court of Appeal determined that Bank Mutiara had untii 1 March 2011
to commence proceedings aganst Tarquin claming the monies Bank Mutiara met this deadline
Tarquin disputes that Bark Mutiara has any enforceable securty interest over the funds and s
seeking the release of the momwes to its order and will therefore wigorously defend the action
which 1s ongong The Company cannot currently estmate the maximum reasonably possible loss
from this matter but belleves 1t 1s significantly fess than amount of cash beng clamed

Legal proceedings relating to Banca Monte del Paschi di Siena SpA

MPS 1ssued a cwil clam, dated 1 March 2013 in the ltallan Courts against the Company and two
former drrectors of MPS MPS alleges that the former directors improperty caused MPS to enter
into certan structured financial transactions with the Company m 2009 (the Transactions) and
alleges that the Company 1s jontly hable for the unlawful conduct of MPS's former directors MPS
clams damages of not less than EURY00 millon  An investigation has also been commenced by
the Public Prosecutor's office n Siena, ltaly into vanous allegations agamnst MPS and certan of its
former drectors, mncluding in relation to the Transactions Starting on 15 Apnl 2013, the Public
Prosecutor in Siena issued seizure orders in relaton to the Transactions seeking to seize the
Transactions and approximately EUR 19 billon of assets sad to be held or recewvable in vanous
accounts of the Company and Nomura Bank International ple {"NBI") in, or managed through, ltaly
and alleging that the Transactions involved offences under Italan law  NBI was informed on 23
Apnl 2013 that a seizure order had been effected over a small amount of cash and certan
receivables in Italy On 26 Apnl 2013, the relevant lallan cniminal judge 1ssued an order dechning
to validate the various seizure orders 1ssued by the Public Prosecutor Accordingly, on the same
date, the Public Prosecutor ordered the immedate restitution of all assets subject to seizure The
Public Prosecutor subsequently lodged an appeal against the order of the relevant ltalan cnminal
judge that declned to valdate the seizure.orders This appeal was rejected by the relevant Italian
cnminal appeal judges by an order dated 13 July 2013 The Company cannot currently estimate
the maximum reasonably possible loss from this matter
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29  ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING

The Company's ulbtmate parent undertaking and controling party, and the parent that heads the
largest group of undertakings for which consohdated financial statements are prepared, 15 Nomura
Holdings, Inc, incorporated n Japan  Copies of the group financial statements of Nomura
Holdings, Inc may be obtained from 9-1, Nihonbashi 1-Chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 103-8645, Japan
The parent that heads the smallest group of undertakings for which consohdated financal
statements are prepared 1s Nomura Europe Holdings plc, a company registered at 1 Angel Lane,
London, ECAR 3AB, United Kingdom
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